ip Procedural Handboo udent Teaching/Internsh

For Cooperating Teachers, Administrators, University Faculty, and Teaching Candidates

Level I Multiple Subject, Mild/Moderate, and Moderate/Severe Specialist Credentials

Preliminary Mild-Moderate, Moderate/Severe, and Multiple Subject Specialist Credentials



California State University, Sacramento College of Education

Department of Special Education, Rehabilitation, School Psychology, and Deaf Studies Department Office: (916) 278-6622

Department office: (510) 270 0022

www.edweb.csus.edu revised: 20101012

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Forward	3
Welcome	4
	_
Section 1 – Program Overview	
The Ryan Act	
About the Department of Special Education, Rehabilitation, School Psychology, and Deaf Studies	
Special Education Philosophy	
Goals of Professional Education	
The Approved Level I Multiple Subject, Mild/Moderate and Moderate/Severe Specialist Credential Programs	
Special Education Program Overview: Rationale	
Specialist Credential Program: Requirements	
Student Teaching Phase Options	16
Section 2 – The Student Teacher	17
Privacy Act	18
Information for Student Teachers	19
Key Points for Student Teachers	21
Observation Guidelines for Student Teachers	
Lesson Plans and Procedures	26
Sample Traditional Lesson Plan Format	28
Lesson Plan Checklist	31
Strong Recommendations	32
Student Teaching/Internship and Field Experiences During an Emergency	33
Section 3 – Student Teacher Portfolio Development	35
Portfolio Development: An Introduction	
Section 4 – The Cooperating Teacher: Roles and Responsibilities	
The Cooperating Teacher	
Your Collegial Relationship with the Student Teacher	
Information for Cooperating Teachers	
The Evaluation of Student Teaching/Internship	
When the Student Teacher Observes	
When You Observe the Student Teacher	
A Few Thoughts for Cooperating/Master Teachers	50

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 5 – The University Supervisor: Roles and Responsibilities	51
General Information for University Supervisors	
Key Points	54
Costion 6 Congred Cuidolines and Evaluation of the Ctudent Too shing /Intermedia Evacuiones	E E
Section 6 – General Guidelines and Evaluation of the Student Teaching/Internship Experience	
Evaluation of Students Teaching/Internship	
Student Teaching Experience Phase I: EDTE 420A, EDS 471, EDS 411	
Student Teaching Experience Phase II and III: EDTE 420B, EDTE 421C, EDS 472, EDS 473, EDS 412, EDS 421	
Internship Experience	61
Section 7 — Resolution of Problems Which May Occur During Student Teaching	63
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
The Early Warning Process	04
Section 8 – Competency Checklists and Other Forms	67
Competency Checklist and Other Forms	
Phase I Evaluation: EDS 471 or EDTE 420A	
Phase II Evaluation; EDTE 420B	73
Phase III Evaluation: EDS 472	81
University Supervisor Visitation/Observations Form	87
Observation Record	88
ODJET VALIOTI NECOTA	
Student Evaluations for EDS 414 and 415	20

FORWARD

This handbook is intended as a guide for students, Cooperating Teachers, School Administrators, and University Supervisors involved in the student teaching field experience component of the Multiple Subject, Mild-Moderate and Moderate-Severe Educational Specialist Credential Program at California State University, Sacramento.

Please direct any suggestions to:

The College of Education
Department of Special Education, Rehabilitation, School Psychology, Deaf Studies
Attention Student Teaching Program Coordinators
Sacramento State
6000 J Street
Sacramento, California 95819

Office Phone: (916) 278-6622

Fax: (916) 278-3498 Email: eds@csus.edu

WELCOME

ear Friends of the Multiple Subject, Mild-Moderate, and Moderate/Severe Credential Programs,

This handbook will serve as an introduction and welcome to participants in our Multiple Subject, Mild-Moderate, and Moderate-Severe Specialist Teacher Preparation Programs. It provides the most current materials, policies, and procedures about our credential program. Review and use of it will facilitate academic activities which will lead to California credentialing. The policies of the handbook are accurate currently but are subject to change by law and or faculty action at any time.

I and/or the Mild/Moderate and Moderate/Sever program coordinators welcome your suggestions for review and inclusion.

The special education faculty appreciate greatly the time and expertise that public school teachers and administrators expend in preparing our student teachers. We could not do our jobs without your assistance.

Sincerely yours,

Dr. Bruce A. Ostertag

Chair

Department of Special Education, Rehabilitation, School Psychology, and Deaf Studies

SECTION 1

PROGRAM OVERVIEW

THE RYAN ACT

The Teacher Preparation and Licensing Act of 1970, the Ryan Act, is the basic legislation dealing with the preparation of teachers for California public schools. The law outlines requirements and limitations on teacher preparation programs, delineates types of credentials, and establishes the Commission on Teacher Credentialing to administer the total process. The Ryan Act was made operational by the Commission in January, 1973. The first Ryan teaching credentials were in September, 1974.

Sacramento State received approval from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing in 1973 for its teacher preparation programs leading to the Multiple and Single Subject Teaching Credentials. The University has also received approval for many teaching major (waiver) programs in the academic areas that are required as part of the teacher preparation program and many advanced credential programs.

ABOUT THE DEPARTMENT OF SPECIAL EDUCATION, REHABILITATION, SCHOOL PSYCHOLOGY, AND DEAF STUDIES

The Department of Special Education, Rehabilitation, School Psychology, and Deaf Studies offers professional programs in the areas of Special Education, Vocational Rehabilitation Counseling, School Psychology, and Deaf Studies. Offered are professional programs leading to specialist credentials for teachers of pupils with mild through severe needs (Mild/Moderate, Moderate/Severe, and Early Childhood Special Education Specialist Credentials). Professional preparation programs leading to Master's Degrees include a Master of Science in Counseling with a Vocational Rehabilitation Counseling option (in cooperation with the Department of Counselor Education), a Master of Science in Counseling with a School Psychology option (also in cooperation with Counselor Education), and a Master of Arts in Education with an option in Special Education.

The Department of Special Education, Rehabilitation, School Psychology, and Deaf Studies offers services to students in other programs at the university and to individuals in the community at large through several course sequences, clinics, and field-based programs. These consist of courses offered to students seeking multiple and/or single subject teaching credentials, degrees in speech pathology or nursing; and opportunities to develop skills in working with individuals who have exceptional needs. In addition, the Department has sponsored since 1986 Young Adult Programs, California's first integrated classes for young adults with severe disabilities on a university campus. The programs consist of students, 18 to 22 years of ages, who are being provided with special education services by the Sacramento County Office of Education and Sacramento City Unified School District. These programs utilize volunteers and student interns from across campus. Please contact our office if you wish more information.

SPECIAL EDUCATION PROGRAM PHILOSOPHY

Our mission is to prepare highly qualified individuals from diverse backgrounds to provide appropriate educational services to individuals with disabilities, birth to adulthood, and their families.

The principles stated above also apply to students enrolled in CSU, Sacramento special education programs. In addition, these students shall be:

- protected, in terms of their rights, as stated in university policy;
- exposed to a wide range of theoretical views and instructional strategies pertaining to persons across
 the lifespan and to an understanding of and appreciation for academic freedom;
- required to develop a personal philosophy for service delivery to exceptional persons and their families;
- reflective of the diversity of the communities they will serve through active recruitment and maintenance efforts;
- exposed to and learn a broad range of strategies for responding positively to diversity with regard to culture; language, lifestyle, family configuration, and socioeconomic status;
- encouraged to serve as agents of positive change within the system of service delivery;
- provided with opportunities for instruction, guided practice, and independent practice in all appropriate areas of professional responsibility for teachers of exceptional persons as part of their training experience;
- be required to demonstrate higher level thinking skills (analysis, synthesis, evaluation) in both oral and written form;
- and be required to meet appropriate, high standards of professional competence and ethics for graduation. Included among these areas of professional responsibility are:
 - a. instructional techniques designed to allow maximum learning by persons across the lifespan with a variety of learning challenges;
 - b. unbiased assessment including normative, curriculum based, and descriptive procedures;

SPECIAL EDUCATION PROGRAM PHILOSOPHY

- c. curriculum design across the lifespan;
- d. behavior management and change procedures;
- e. teaching and program evaluation methods;
- f. consultation and collaboration skills with colleagues, parents, and families;
- g. inclusion techniques, the uses of which are designed to result in the physical, social, and academic inclusion of exceptional infants, toddlers, children, and youth in regular education programs that reflect the principles contained herein;
- h. legislation, case law, and ethics as these pertain to teachers and exceptional persons across the lifespan;
- i. knowledge of how schools function as an institution within society;
- j. research methodologies for the identification of effective practices;
- k. teaching career management skills.

GOALS OF PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION

California State University, Sacramento recognizes that it has a major responsibility to California and the nation to encourage men and women who have high ethical and intellectual standards to enter the teaching profession. To that end, the University values and seeks teacher candidates who demonstrate a commitment to problem-solving, lifelong learning—so essential for professional competency, and a dedication to child and adolescent development. A solid academic program forms the foundation for those planning to enter teaching. The College of Education provides specialized graduate professional preparation on this foundation.

Goals of the credential programs include the following:

- Student will observe and analyze behavior in the public school classroom.
- Students will explore and use community resources to enhance their students' learning.
- Students will identify individual differences in growth and development and relate these differences to their student's achievement.
- Students will evidence effective communication skills to stimulate optimal learning.
- Students will demonstrate a knowledge of the learning process, the diagnosis of learning.
- 6 Student will identify cognitive and affective needs of students and plan appropriate lessons.
- Students will be able to teach lessons that include a range of strategies using cognitive processes: e.g., inquiry, discovery, problem solving, inductive reasoning.
- Students will study various models of classroom management and be able to implement one or more on a consistent basis.
- Students will demonstrate a knowledge of the role of the teacher in the profession and in the community.

THE APPROVED MULTIPLE SUBJECT, MILD/MODERATE AND MODERATE/ SEVERE SPECIALIST CREDENTIAL PROGRAMS

These programs are designed to provide experience with more than one ability level, with different linguistic and cultural groups, with students who have a variety of disabling conditions, and with opportunities for involvement in school-community services. Each phase includes integrated course work and field experiences. The Multiple Subject, Mild/Moderate and Moderate/Severe Educational Specialist Credential program is a five-to six-phase program, with integrated general and special education work in each phase. It leads to both the Multiple Subject and Specialist Credentials. Stand-alone educational specialist credentials are available and are four-phase programs.

Please note that because of California Commission on Teacher Credential (CCTC) modifications to the statewide special education standards, the Sac State educational specialist programs will reflect these changes starting in Fall 2011.

Please check online for any and all programmatic changes: www.edweb.csus.edu/eds

SPECIALIST CREDENTIAL PROGRAM OVERVIEW: RATIONALE

Rationale: The schools of California are facing an ever-escalating teacher shortage. This is especially true in the area of special education. A large percentage of special education teachers do not possess special education credentials; these teachers often have minimal training and experience related to special education, let alone at-risk students who are also English language learners. For example, school districts employ special education teachers under "emergency" credentials after verifying for the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) that they have searched for—and failed to find—a fully credentialed person. School districts also employ substitute teachers on long-term contracts to staff special education classrooms. Additionally, many districts are requiring all educators to have a CLAD emphasis to maintain or obtain a teaching position.

The structure of typical credential programs contributes to the shortage of trained special educators and CLAD emphasis educators. Historically, CTC guidelines mandated that special education teaching credentials be built upon a prior general education (multiple subject-basic) teaching credential. Thus, teachers interested in a career in special education needed to complete an entire program in special education after finishing the basic credential program; at Sac State, this additional special education training consisted of three semesters of full-time study.

The newly restructured program decreases significantly the number of semesters necessary to train a person for entrance into the field of special education. The program should increase the number of trained special educators and CLAD emphasis teachers in the Sac State service area.

The benefits of this program will not accrue to special education alone. One result will be to enhance the general education classroom teacher's skills in teaching children who experience difficulties in learning and/or may be English language learners. Some teachers do not wish to teach in special education programs, but rather want to gain additional competence in teaching all children who experience difficulties in the general education classroom.

The faculty believe that the credential programs have been combined without sacrificing quality. The special education credential program allows faculty to make use of their unique skills and content backgrounds; it also allows for exciting opportunities to teach. The program will be evaluated in order to provide data on which to base decisions about program quality and effectiveness. Furthermore, the combined program is based on the same CTC approved competencies that are imbedded in the traditional MS and CLAD emphasis programs; students in the combined program must demonstrate all of the same competencies demonstrated by their peers in all the traditional programs.

SPECIALIST CREDENTIAL PROGRAM OVERVIEW: REQUIREMENTS

Requirements: Specialist Teaching Credentials in the areas of Level I & II Mild-Moderate and Moderate-Severe are offered through Sac State. This handbook overviews the Level I coursework and student teaching required of candidates in the Mild-Moderate and Moderate-Severe Credential program. Unique to these programs is their field-based competency methods of teaching in clinical and school settings. Students have the opportunity to experience most teaching situations and problems in a natural setting. Training includes the skill sequences, assessment/diagnostic techniques, and developmental/remedial instructional techniques involved in the areas of language and communication, reading, mathematics, writing, handwriting, spelling, and social and family living skills.

The Mild/Moderate Educational Specialist Credential Program currently requires completion of approximately 60 units of coursework. These programs require completion with a minimum 3.0 grade point average.

Students should note that credential requirements are continually reviewed by the Legislature and the Commission on Teacher Credentialing and are subject to change. Current requirements can be verified in the Department and/or the Sac State website.

Programs are offered leading to a Certificate of Eligibility for the following basic teaching credentials:

- Mild/Moderate (M/M) Disabilities Specialist
- Moderate/Severe (M/S) Disabilities Specialist
- Early Childhood Special Education (ECSE) Specialist

There also are university and California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC)-approved program options that allow candidates concurrently to pursue the M/M or M/S along with the

- Multiple Subject
- Single Subject
- Middle Level Emphasis Credentials and an approved program that allows candidates to add an ECSE Certificate onto existing M/M, M/S or other California Level II Special Education Specialist credentials.

Information about these programs is available from the EDS Department Office or website: www.edweb.csus.edu

As required by CTC, all special education credential programs are designed to reflect two levels of training. **Level I** programs prepare candidates as beginning teachers for children and youth with disabilities who receive services in a variety of settings; Sac State specialist credential programs emphasize services in

SPECIALIST CREDENTIAL PROGRAM OVERVIEW: REQUIREMENTS

inclusive settings. **Level II** programs are designed to induct beginning special education teachers into the profession through on-the-job support, professional development, and additional university training. Level I programs all have internship options. The **Level I** M/M and M/S credentials prepare candidates to work in a variety of settings with and on behalf of children and youth with disabilities from kindergarten through adult. Candidates interested in working with infants and young children with disabilities—and with their families—should pursue the **Level I ECSE credential**.

Sac State Coursework Overview—Educational Specialist (Mild/Moderate or Moderate/Severe) Credential, Multiple Subject Credential, & M.A. [beginning Fall 2003]

LEVEL I Cours	LEVEL I Coursework & Field Experience	Units	LEVEL I Studer	LEVEL I Student Teaching & Coursework	Units
Pre/Co-requisites	quisites	11	(Not required if	(Not required if currently employed in the field—advisor approval required)	(pa.
EDS 100A/B	Education of Exceptional Children	2+1	7 (7 4 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7		77
EDS 101	Consultation Skills	3	MIIIQ/IMIOQ	leachillig	14-19
EDS 130A/B	Typical and Atypical Development	2+1	EDS 233	M/M/S St. Teaching Seminar	— с
HLSC 136	School Health Education	2	EDS 2/3 EDS 472/473	instructional Methods Mild/Mod Student Teaching/Internship OR 10/15	n
Level I—C	-Core Program Requirements—Mild/Mod M	-Mild/Mod Mod/Sev Core 18	EDS 412/421	Mod/Sev Student Teaching/Internship	10/15
EDS 119	Introduction to Inclusive Education	٣	.0 (1:1:0		7
EDS 120A/B	Management of Teaching and Learning	2+1	Multiple St	Multiple Subject Student leaching	= :
EDS 216A/B	Movement, Mobility & Specialized Health Care 2+1		EDTE 420B*	Multiple Subject Student Teaching	10
EDS 225A/B	Assessment in Teaching and Learning	2+1	EDTE 307*	Multiple Subject Student Teaching/Internship 1	
EDS 291A/B	Technology in Special Education	2+1			
EDS 292A/B	Teaching English Learners	33	Employme	Employment & CTC Preliminary Level 1 Specialist Creden-	t Creden-
(EDTE 170 Prer	(EDTE 170 Prerequisite to Multiple Subject)		tial		
Mild/Mod	Mild/Mod/Sev and MS Instructional Methods Core	18	I EVEL II Drogram	St. 27.70	
(RICA required	(RICA required unless Multiple Subject, credential held)			Oglail!	
EDBM 104	Multicultural Education	3	EDS 252A/B	Maaction Seminar	- r
EDS 122A/B	Social Science Methods	2+1	EUS 20/A/B	Adv. Studies in Curric, Assess & Ben Man.	ა + ა
EDS 123A/B	Math Methods	2+1	G/ V 0 % C 3 C 3	Adv. Chudin in Collaboration O. Tramina	n - n
EDS 124A/B	Science Methods	2+1	EU3 200A/B	Adv. Statistics III collaboration & rearining	n (
EDBM 170*	Introduction to Bilingual Education	3	Culmination	(s units may be district-based)	n
EDS 220	Language and Literacy I	٣	Culmination—L	Cuimination—Level II Portiollo/Competency Review by appt.)	
EDS 221	Language and Literacy II	3			
EDS 317*	Art in Inclusive & Diverse K-8 Classrooms	1	Master's Co	Master's Core Coursework (WPE & Adv. to Candidacy)	idacy)
			EDS 250	Ed Research	e
Initial Fiel	Initial Field Experience	2–6	EDS 251	Ed Pluralistic Demo Society	m
EDS 232	Mild/Moderate/Severe Seminar (required)	1			
EDS 411/471	Phase I Field Exp. (Mod/Sev or Mild/Mod) OR 5		**EDS 297	Current Issues in Sp Ed	m
EDTE 420A	Phase I Field Exp. (Gen. Ed.—Elem. Level)				
			Special Edi	Special Education Master's Core Coursework	
ADVISEMENT	M		""EDS 500/501	I nesis/Project	0 + 0
Program Pla	Program Plan with Signatures		**ED 298	MA Seminar (EDS 297 Prerequisite)	m
Application	Application for Initial Field Experience—Paperwork Requirements			(Offered Only in Spring Semesters)	
Application	Application for Student Teaching—Paperwork Requirements				
(Subject	(Subject Matter or equivalent must be passed prior to Phase II & III S.T.)		[*Optional: Mul	[*Optional: Multiple Subject Credential]	
Application	Application for MA/Advance. to Candidacy—Paperwork Requirements		[**Reservation r	[**Reservation required one year in advance]	
ELA Requirements	ements				
RICA Requirements	rements				
Fifth Year Re	Fifth Year Requirements				
Second tecl	Second technology course for Clear Multiple Subject requirements				

STUDENT TEACHING PHASE OPTIONS

Phase I Option:

Phase I student teachers student teach Monday–Friday mornings (until approximately 12:00 noon) for approximately 15 weeks. The 15 weeks are typically spent in an elementary *general education classroom or special education placement (placement is based on student teacher interest and experience).* The focus of the **Phase I** student teaching experience is on one-to-one, small group, and some large group instruction in the areas of (but not limited to) classroom organization and management, language and literacy, and math instruction. Most of the students will be in their second semester of coursework. Their student teaching placement will need to provide them the opportunity to support, create, and demonstrate competency in these areas as well as opportunities to assess student learning. Any requirements for specific course assignments will be shared with the cooperating teacher before any implementation.

Phase II & III Option:

Phase II and III student teachers student teach full time Monday through Friday, for approximately 15-16 weeks. **Phase II** student teachers are placed in an elementary general education classroom, whereas Phase III student teachers are placed in a special education field assignment (elementary, middle, or high school). **Both Phase II & III student teaching involves a 2-week solo teaching period.**

Partnership Option:

The Special Education Credential Program has successfully implemented a student teaching cooperative partnership option. This partnership model involves **two Phase I student teachers** being assigned to one cooperating teacher. This partnership arrangement helps to provide support to those general education teachers who promote inclusive educational programming for special education students.

Peer Coaching Option:

For the past several years, the special education credential program has been involved in a student teaching *Peer Coaching Program*. This program allows a **Phase I student teacher** the opportunity of teaming for their first field experience with a **Phase III student teacher**. The Phase III student teacher works with the cooperating teacher in mentoring the Phase I student teacher. Both the student teachers and cooperating teachers who have been involved in this option have thoroughly enjoyed the experience.

SECTION 2

THE STUDENT TEACHER: ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITY

PRIVACY ACT

B ased upon the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, teacher candidates have access to inspect and review the records kept on file in the Teacher Preparation Office. Candidates sign a release form authorizing certain individuals access to their files. Beyond the candidates and those individuals designated by the candidates, only certain other University, state and federal officials are authorized by the Act to review these files. Candidates may make an appointment with the Education Student Service center (ESSC) coordinator to go over all materials in the files. Files do **not** leave the ESSC.

Those desiring copies of documents in their files, e.g., transcripts, should make copies prior to submitting them to the Teacher Preparation Office.

INFORMATION FOR STUDENT TEACHERS

Your field experience is intended to give you the opportunity to practice the theories and instructional strategies you have learned in your coursework. Your supervisor and cooperating teacher are there to offer advice and suggestions and to counsel you throughout the semester. Our main priorities are your personal and professional growth in education and success in your assigned classroom.

- Familiarize yourself with your Sac State Specialist Credential program. Carefully reading this Handbook will help you to do so.
- Become familiar with the scope and sequence of courses. If you need more information on this, your supervisor or faculty advisor will be happy to provide you with a detailed outline.
- Meet with your supervisor and cooperating teacher to establish a schedule of assignments and observations. Be sure to provide a current address and phone number. Be sure to discuss any questions or concerns you have about the time, date, duration and content of your formal observations. Be available to remain after school to plan, attend staff meetings, in-services, parent conferences, and other school functions, such as "Back to School Night" and "Open House."
- Be sure to advise your cooperating teacher and university supervisor if and when an absence becomes necessary. If you are scheduled to teach that day, let your cooperating teacher know what you were planning to cover and provide the plans. You may need to make up the missed day(s) to complete student teaching (four sick days are usually awarded).
- Keep up to date and accurate lesson plans while you are student teaching. Be sure to confer with your cooperating teacher on topics and curriculum that will be covered.
- Attend bi-monthly seminars with your seminar instructor. Submit any observation logs or lesson plans that are requested of you.
- Keep your teaching plan book up-to-date and follow the guide of your cooperating teacher's plan book. Remember, they must be complete enough for someone else to step in and substitute teach.
- Oevelop and teach appropriate lessons as required by your university faculty and program design.
- Become familiar with the California Frameworks and Grade Level/District Continuums and Curriculum Guides.
- Be professional at all times. Maintain good rapport and appropriate interprofessional interactions and relationships with all building staff, faculty, administration, students, and parents.
- When attending IEP, SST, and parent conference meetings, listen attentively. Do not offer your own opinions unless asked for one by those in charge. Never offer advice or recommend services or materials for children as this may be interpreted as binding upon the district.

INFORMATION FOR STUDENT TEACHERS

Once you are student teaching full-time, *adhere to your cooperating teacher's contract hours*. Except when school events conflict with evening credential courses, be available to remain after school to plan, attend staff meetings, inservices, parent conferences, and other school functions such as "Back to School Night" or "Open House."

NOTE: Special Requirement: If a student's university supervisor and cooperating teacher determine that a student needs more time in a general or special education field experience in order to demonstrate competencies, the student may be expected to extend the field experience for an agreed-upon period.

KEY POINTS FOR STUDENT TEACHERS

- Please, do not make any placement arrangements or changes on your own! This is the very specific duty of the Field Placement Coordinator. It may appear that you are helping, but keep in mind we have over 60 placements to make in our area districts, and we have worked hard to make our contacts with the best schools and teachers in these districts. If you have special needs, communicate these first to your university supervisor who will then contact the Field Placement Coordinator.
- If you are experiencing any sort of difficulty in your placement, share this with your supervisor immediately. Your supervisor is there to serve as your advocate and liaison between you, the cooperating teacher, and the school site.
- Always be professional in dress, demeanor, attitude. You may hear or see things in classrooms with which you do not agree, or you may learn confidential information about a student; keeping these issues confidential is essential.
- Be willing to go the extra mile. Offer to assist with bulletin boards, and take on duties. Become known as a problem-solver not a problem-maker.
- If you are a Phase II or Phase III student teacher and will be taking over full-time for two weeks, it may be beneficial to teach the two weeks **prior** to your last week to ensure a smooth transition for your cooperating teacher.
- Enjoy your field experience. It will be short time in the long range of your teaching career. This is a challenging time and we are working hard to ensure that it is a positive and growing experience for you.

Throughout student teaching you should observe closely how students and adults function, behave and interact in the school environment. Many factors influence the individual and group behavior of teachers, students, administrators, or volunteers, among them their perceptions of role and duties, social and peer pressures, time and schedules, and physical or space characteristics of classroom, school plant, and facilities.

By focusing your attention on the many elements of the school setting selectively over time you will develop a deeper understanding of this complex organizational system called "school." With this understanding you will be better able to perform leadership roles with your learners and teaching peers which result in individual success and an emotionally healthy climate for learning.

In the beginning, focus your observations on your cooperating teacher, what s/he does, how the classroom is set up, what the students are like, and similar things as suggested by the questions provided in this handbook. These questions are appropriate starting points for your inquiry; you and your cooperating teacher or University supervisor should collaborate to determine other foci for your later observations.

Suggestions for Observation Procedure

Position yourself on a diagonal so you will have a good view of the classroom. Do not try to correct papers or make lesson plans while observing. After reviewing the suggested observation questions, decide what you will observe and concentrate your senses in that area. Record or make notes for your observations, using observation forms, commercial or self-prepared, or anecdotal notes. You should use a three-column format on standard notebook paper, similar to the following:

		Observation Notes	
Or what was the effect? apply this information to	I	II	III
	What did you observe?		Conclusions—How will you apply this information to your teaching?

ocus only on Column I during the observation. Describe specifics in detail. Columns II and III can be completed after your observation or during inactive moments. This format will allow you to think carefully about events and give sharp focus to follow-up discussions with your cooperating teacher.

Suggested Observation Questions

The Room:

- What is the general appearance of the classroom?
- How are desks, tables, or chairs arranged?
- What is the focus/theme of the bulletin boards?
- Are there displays of student work or exhibits of other materials and objects on bookcases, tables, or walls
- Are whiteboards convenient to students/ How often and in what ways does the teacher make use of them?

The Beginning of the Class Period:

- How and where do students spend their time before class begins?
- What is their manner when they enter the classroom?
- How does the teacher interact with students before class begins?
- Open Does the teacher have a set procedure for bringing the class to order—gaining their attention?
- How is attendance taken? How are tardy students handled?
- What are procedures for flag salute? Answering office summons? Giving instructions? Dismissing class for recess?
- What is the attitude and response of the students toward the lesson or the day's work?
- What equipment, books, or supplies are students expected to bring to class each day?
- How are student homework, worksheets, and other learning materials collected or distributed?
- How and when are individual/group assignments announced? Are they written on the chalkboard? Does the teacher review standing assignments (or late work due) with the class?

The lesson:

- Are the objectives made clear? Do students know specifically what is expected in behavior and achievement?
- What major method or teaching strategy is used? Do teaching methods vary from lesson to lesson or from student to student?
- Does the teacher use any of the following instructional models: direct instruction, Madeline Hunter model, data managed instruction, learning strategies, discovery or inquiry learning, problem-solving, cooperative learning, peer-tutoring, and/or language experience? What other special approaches are used?
- Of the talking done in the classroom—questions, answers, examples, rationales, descriptions, comparisons, etc.—what percentage is contributed by the teacher? By students as a group? By certain individuals?

- What kinds of questions does the teacher ask? Are they understood by the students? Is it clear whether the student is expected to answer with facts or with personal opinion? Are questions asked which build concepts and develop thinking skills rather than those which emphasize recall of minor details or facts in isolation?
- Did the teacher used all of the instruction time available? Were students attentive and productive until the very end of the period?
- What techniques did the teacher use to help resolve specific problems?

Student Characteristics:

- What are the ability and achievement levels of students in the class?
- How has the teacher adapted instruction and assignments to meet individual student needs?
- Does the teacher follow the organization or sequence of the texts or workbooks? Are units planned which reorder concepts for individuals or small groups? Does the teacher prepare/use supplemental materials which reflect the many levels of student performance?
- Is there a variety teaching methods, strategies and daily activities to help compensate for the range of student abilities and interests?
- Are special accommodations in time, length and difficulty levels of homework, library, or in-class assignments differentiated for individuals or groups on the basis of need?

Management and Discipline:

- How does the teacher manage the group?
- How does the teacher manage individuals?
- What are the rules of the classroom? Are they posted or unposted?
- How does the teacher convey information about rules to students?

LESSON PLANS AND PROCEDURES

What is the weekly plan?

The weekly plan, sometimes called the block plan, should contain as a minimum, the specific (1) topic/objectives, (2) activities, (3) materials, and (4) assignments for each teaching period, Monday thru Friday. Keep this plan up-to-date.

How do I write daily lesson plans?

If problems occur in student teaching, most can be traced to careless or inadequate planning. To avoid unnecessary problems, the student teacher is advised to plan thoroughly for each lesson. Lesson planning should help the student teacher organize his/her thoughts and also enable the Cooperating Teacher to know the materials, strategies, and activities that the student teacher intends to use. The University Supervisor and Cooperating Teacher advise the student teacher on appropriate/required formats for lesson plans. Most lesson plans include, as a minimum, the following information:

- a. Objectives: (What should the pupils be able to do as a result of the lesson (stated in behavioral terms).
- b. Materials to be Used: (list)
- c. Procedures:
 - Introduction to the lesson/key questions
 - Body of the lesson/key questions
 - Conclusion of the lesson/key questions
 - Follow-up activities (as appropriate)
- d. Evaluation: Plans for determining if objectives have been achieved.

Lesson plans should be kept in an orderly notebook, readily available in a designated place for the University Supervisor and the Cooperating Teacher.

You should file your lesson plans in some large systematic way for future reference, such as a large 3-hole note-book. In this you can also include records of your observations of your Cooperating Teacher, seating charts, grades, and records for your students, notes from your Cooperating Teacher and University Supervisor, records of your class visits, conferences and evaluations, useful teaching or bulletin board ideas, schedules and memos and other items. Be sure to organize the notebook into sections so you can make quick and easy use of it.

What procedure will the Cooperating Teacher follow when my plans are poorly done or not ready in advance?

All plans must be acceptable before you will be able to teach. In many instances you may only have to make minor modifications on the original (or none at all) after lessons are reviewed by the Cooperating Teacher.

LESSON PLANS AND PROCEDURES

At other times, you will need to edit or rewrite the entire lesson, following suggestions made by the Cooperating Teacher or University Supervisor.

You will not be allowed to teach if your plans are not ready. Not having your lessons ready places a severe burden on your Cooperating Teacher because alternative lessons, often hastily prepared, will have to be implemented; this is extremely unfair to the students. Such failure to produce on your part will be considered a gross form of unprofessional conduct and may result in your removal from student teaching.

When and how will I be allowed to shorten my lesson plans?

You will be allowed to use brief plans only after you have shown your ability to teach successfully. This will be determined by your University Supervisor and/or you Cooperating Teacher.

You may simply abbreviate details in the standard "Daily Lesson Plan" form, or use 8 1/2" x 11" which will fit in your notebook.

More extensive lesson plan samples are included in the seminar packet of information.

SAMPLE TRADITIONAL LESSON PLAN FORMAT

Lesson Preparation and Analysis Form				
Name: Ms. Ann Tillies	Student(s) or Group: Cary, Carlos, Bill, Su-Lee, & Tyrone	Date:		

- 1. Behavioral objectives of activity: When given a passage to read, students will be able to underline two important words or phrases for each paragraph with 90% accuracy. When given a passage to read, students will be able to see-write answers to 7 out of 8 comprehension questions for three consecutive passages.
- 2. Description of Activity:
 - Demonstration: Explain purpose of underlining strategy (i.e., to help student identify and recall important information). Tell students that the teacher is going to show them how to use the underlining strategy. Model the strategy by reading the first paragraph of the passage aloud. Verbalize the steps to the strategy:
 - "I need to underline two important words or phrases."
 - "Important word or phrases tell me about the main idea or details."
 - "Underline."
 - "Ask myself, 'Why is this important?""
 - "Go on to the next paragraph."
 - Guided Practice: Have students read the second paragraph. Lead the students through verbalizing the steps above. Repeat guided practice with paragraphs 3 and 4. Lead students in summarizing the content of each paragraph using the underlined key phrases. After finishing the passage, lead students in using underlined phrases to read-write answers to comprehension questions.
 - Independent Practice: None
- 3. Measurement: Note each student's use of self-instruction statements. Note each student's underlining of two words or phrases per paragraph. Tally number of comprehension questions answered correctly.
- 4. Materials: Story "Animals with Pouches." Highlight pens.
- 5. Adaptations: Engage students in choral practice on self-verbalizations.
- 6. Problems that might be encountered: Students may not be able to discriminate important from unimportant words or phrases. If so, ask students to justify the importance of the words and phrases they underlined. Provide feedback on selections and justifications.

SAMPLE TRADITIONAL LESSON PLAN FORMAT

- 7. Problems that actually arose: Students had difficulty with identifying important words and phrases. Feedback was provided, and student selections were shaped into more appropriate responses.
- 8. Behavioral techniques used during activity: Strategy modeling and specific academic praise for accurate self-verbalizations and underlining.
- 9. What you learned from this activity: Students respond well to modeling strategy steps. The model and lead steps provide sufficient support to students so that they can make accurate responses and enjoy their success.

SAMPLE TRADITIONAL LESSON PLAN FORMAT

- 1. Anticipatory Set
 - a. Focus students
 - b. State objective
 - c. Establish purpose

2. Instruction

- a. Provide information
 - explain concept
 - state definitions*
 - identify critical attributes*
 - provide examples*
 - model
- b. Check for understanding
 - pose key questions
 - ask students to explain concept, definitions, attributes in their own words*
 - have students discriminate between examples and nonexamples*
 - encourage students to generate their own examples*
 - use active participation devices

Guided Practice

- a. Initiate practice activities which are under direct supervision
- b. Elicit overt response that demonstrates behavior in objective
- c. Provide close monitoring
- d. Continue to check for understanding
- e. Provide specific knowledge of results

4. Closure

- a. Make assessment to determine if students have met objective
- b. Have each student perform behavior on his/her own

5. Independent Practice

- a. Have students continue to practice on their own
- b. Provide knowledge of results
- * These items are particularly critical when teaching an abstract concept (e.g., democracy). They may not be relevant/appropriate when teaching a practice-oriented concept (e.g., capital letters).

LESSON PLAN CHECKLIST

Name		Grade
Subject Area	_	# Students
	1.	General Information: your name, grade, and topic or skill for the lesson.
	2.	Objective/Purpose: a) Behavioral Objective, written in behavioral terms, including what you want he students to do as a result of your teaching, the conditions necessary, and how you will evaluate their learning; b) Purpose, how you will tell the students about the purpose of the lesson.
	3.	Anticipatory Set, an activity that actively gets the students ready for the lesson. What you are going to have the students do so you know they are ready for your teaching and their learning.
	4.	Lesson Development: a) Input, what will you say?; b) Model, how will you model what you want the students to do or learn?; c) Checking for understanding, how will you actively check the students' understanding of your teaching?
	5.	Practice: a) Guided Practice, how do you plan to actively involve the students in practicing the skills you have introduced and modeled in your lesson?; b) Independent Practice, how do you plan to provide opportunities for independently practicing the skills you have introduced?
	6.	The End: how you will plan to summarize or end the lesson.
	7.	Materials: references or copies of materials.
	8.	The Cheese Stands Alone! Can another teacher use this lesson plan to teach this lesson?
Comments:		

STRONG RECOMMENDATIONS

Public School Attendance and Emergency Absences

During student teaching/internship, student teachers/interns are expected to arrive prior to class time and, when possible, remain after class for conferences with the cooperating teacher and/or University supervisor. Student teachers/interns should always let the main office know whey are in the building. (Some schools have a sign-in procedure.) Illness and emergencies are the only acceptable excuses for absence. In the event of absence, it is the responsibility of the student teacher/intern to inform the school (the cooperating teacher or school office, as directed) in sufficient time for instruction to be continued effectively. If unannounced absences occur, the cooperating teacher should notify the University supervisor immediately. Contact hours lost because of absence must be made up (beyond the four sick days).

Outside Work Commitments

No formal policy governs student teachers' commitments outside the preparation program. However, a student teacher's future employment depends, in large part, on success during the preparation program, especially in student teaching/internship. Experience has shown that student teachers should plan ahead to make the student teaching/internship semesters as free from other obligations as possible. Heavy time requirements for employment and extra classes (e.g., classes toward the Master's degree) should be avoided, if at all possible.

Dress Code

The University does not have a dress code, but many public schools do. Whether the code is written or unwritten, student teachers are expected to conform to the standards of dress expected of regularly employed teachers at that school.

STUDENT TEACHING/INTERNSHIP & FIELD EXPERIENCES DURING AN EMERGENCY

From the office of the general Counsel for California State Universities

- "It shall be the policy of this University that whenever normal operational procedures in a public or private agency are disrupted and/or halted by emergencies such as civil disturbances, natural disasters, and strikes all contractual obligations between the University and the agency, involving students in teaching and/or field experiences, shall be suspended during the period of the emergency."
- We interpret this to include sanctioned and unsanctioned job action.
- "Students and staff are advised that their physical entrance into such emergency situations may involve
 physical risks for which the University cannot accept any sort of liability. Should a University staff member
 or student decide to enter such a situations, such entrance is entirely at the individual's personal initiative
 and risk."
- Interpretation: Any student who crosses a picket line does so at his/her own risk; Sac State will not accept
 any liability.
- "Consequently, student emergency situations shall be completed disregarded by University instructors in their assignment of grades or the making of evaluations."
- Interpretation: Student teaching during the period of the strike will be completely disregarded in faculty evaluations and final grades.

STUDENT TEACHING/INTERNSHIP & FIELD EXPERIENCES DURING AN EMERGENCY

From the office of the general Counsel for California State Universities

- "During the course of such an emergency, it shall be incumbent upon the University instructor to provide appropriate alternative instructional experiences for students whose University assignments require involvement in agency operation."
- Interpretation: If the strike lasts more than two weeks, Sac State will provide alternative instructional experiences.
- If a strike occurs, the student is required to notify the school office of his/her intended absence and then should contact the Special Education Department for instructions.

SECTION 3

STUDENT TEACHER PORTFOLIO DEVELOPMENT

PORTFOLIO DEVELOPMENT: AN INTRODUCTION

One characteristic of exemplary teachers is that they learn from each experience and every person they meet. They seek ongoing professional training to refine their practice. They remain current about educational research. They read professional journals and books, attend workshops, and interact with colleagues in order to benefit from the experience of others. They ask endless questions of other people and really listen to answers. They try out new ideas, reflect on the results, and then discard or adapt their ideas. Often they keep reflective journals. When they travel, they look for opportunities to learn all they can about the other places. They volunteer in the community, getting to know its people, values, and agencies. When they join groups they tend to be the ones who go to the meetings and do the committee work.

Although teachers know that all these forms of experience have contributed to their becoming effective professionals, most would find it difficult to demonstrate to others exactly how these various experiences have fit in their pattern of professional growth. As you embark on your professional journey you will probably find that you, too, have many valuable skills and experiences that are difficult to convey in a single test score or course grade. Because these skills and experiences are part of your growing competencies, it is important that you be able to convey them to others as well as to yourself.

A professional portfolio can help. It can be a tool that enables you to make sense out of a myriad of experiences. It can also bring into focus a clear picture of yourself as a growing, changing professional. Equally as significant, it can be a convincing, effective vehicle for you to demonstrate to others in a meaningful way the skills and knowledge you gained in something as complex as teaching.

What is a Portfolio?

A portfolio is not merely a file of course projects and assignments, nor is it a scrapbook of teaching memorabilia. A portfolio is an organized, goal-driven documentation of your professional growth and achieved competence in the complex act called teaching. Although it is a collection of documents, a portfolio is tangible evidence of the wide range of knowledge, dispositions, and skills that you posses as a growing professional. What's more, documents in the portfolio are self-selected, reflecting your individuality and autonomy.

Who is Required to Develop a Portfolio?

Each credential student is required to build a professional portfolio. Typically, the portfolio development begins during the Phase I field experience and/or field experience equivalency. There is no reason you couldn't begin collecting artifacts prior to your first formal student teaching/field experience, however. We realize that your professional portfolio is a work in progress and will grow as you move through the credential program, including the transition from being a pre-service teacher to an in-service teacher.

PORTFOLIO DEVELOPMENT: AN INTRODUCTION

How Should I Organize My Portfolio?

There is no one uniform way to organize your portfolio, but to be effective it must have a system of organization that is understandable and meaningful to your and other educators. It is for this reason that we suggest you organize your portfolio around the California Standards for the Teaching Profession (CSTP) and Core Standards for all Specialist and Service Credentials. Your portfolio will contain several sections, with the largest sections corresponding to the CSTP and Standards of Quality and Effectiveness for Education Specialist Credential Programs.

So, go ahead and begin collecting. You can begin identifying examples of class assignments and other artifacts that will be placed in one of the standards sections. Remember that you can use an artifact in more than one section because several types of artifacts may document more than one standard. As you file each of your artifacts under a standard, you may want to include a brief statement about why you have filed the document under that particular standard.

Who Will Look at My Portfolio?

While a student, your university supervisor, seminar instructor, and faculty advisor(s) will review your portfolio. Moreover, your portfolio will be an excellent way for you to introduce yourself to your cooperating/master teacher and administrators during your student teaching field experiences. Cooperating teachers often are in a position to help guide you in the selection of your artifacts.

During job interviews your portfolio is likely to be reviewed by superintendents, principals, teachers, parents, and in some cases, school board members. In addition, your portfolio will help provide the Level II coordinator with evidence of your effectiveness in teaching.

SECTION 4

THE COOPERATING TEACHER: ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

THE COOPERATING TEACHER

Selection

The procedure for selecting cooperating teachers involves school district administrators, school and/or vice principals, cooperating teachers themselves, and the University faculty. While the criteria for selecting cooperating teachers may vary from school to school and district to district, assignments are based in general on the following criteria:

- A willingness to meet regularly with the student teacher to plan lessons and to provide feedback on the observed lessons;
- A commitment to modeling for the student teacher exemplary instructional methods and an effective system of classroom management;
- A sensitivity to the needs of a beginning teacher (for example, the need to experiment with teaching techniques suggested in University courses and/or by the University supervisor);
- Skill in communicating about expectations, rationale for decisions, and evaluations of teaching;
- A desire to grow professionally through the exchange of ideas with the student teacher and through opportunities offered by Sac State.

YOUR COLLEGIAL RELATIONSHIP WITH THE STUDENT TEACHER

As a cooperating teacher, you are a role model, coach, observer, problem solver, teacher, and at times, a friend. As refreshing and fulfilling as it can be to have a student teacher to work with, it also takes time and energy. Having a student teacher means spending time with that person—whenever you can snatch some—to plan, reflect, and share observations, and to offer guidance on a regular basis.

For the student teacher, entering your classroom is an adjustment, too. Not only does the student teacher have to adjust to the group of children and your style as a teacher, but most likely he is a newcomer in a community where personal relationships are already in place.

To complicate matters, there is an inherent inequality in the relationship between student teachers and cooperating teachers. Your ability to recognize that inequality, accept the responsibility that inequality brings, and strive as much as possible for a collaborative and respectful relationship, will be key to a successful relationship.

The student teacher, too, needs to recognize the inequality and accept your leadership to make decisions regarding the classroom, the students, and ground rules for both. As a "guest" in your classroom, the student teacher needs to understand his/her professional obligation to support your leadership and values.

YOUR COLLEGIAL RELATIONSHIP WITH THE STUDENT TEACHER

Cooperating Teacher BENEFITS Practical Help

- Having another perspective on students and situations
- Having additional interests or strengths represented
- Having another educator to work with students

Professional Boost

- · Forcing a clarification of goals and assessment
- Having an ongoing source of fresh ideas, new thinking in the field
- · Making possible the rewards of mentorship

Cooperating Teacher CHALLENGES Professional Challenges

- Needing to compensate if students are learning less
- · Deciding what to do if practices conflict
- Needing to intervene if students are feeling unsafe

Personal Challenges

- · Feeling judged
- Having relationships with students changed
- · Giving honest, constructive feedback

Student Teacher BENEFITS Practical Help

- · Having a laboratory for learning pedagogy
- Having a laboratory for learning classroom management
- · Having someone to share the responsibility

Professional Boost

- Having an accomplished mentor
- Having a supportive mentor
- · Having a colleague in learning

Student Teacher CHALLENGES Professional Challenges

- Being a guest in someone else's classroom
- Deciding what to do if practices conflict
- · Having authority undermined

Professional Boost

- · Feeling ideas are being dismissed
- Dealing with rivalries
- Asking for and getting honest, useful feedback

Adapted from Source: The Master Teacher, Developmental Studies Center, Berkeley, California

Student Teacher Challenges

Professional Challenges

- Being a guest in someone else's classroom
- Deciding what to do if practices conflict
- · Having authority undermined

Professional Boost

- Feeling ideas are being dismissed
- Dealing with rivalries
- Asking for and getting honest, useful feedback

As a Cooperating Master Teacher you are one of the student teacher's most important resources during the field experience. You are that student' professional coach and mentor. As such, you will need to provide regular feedback, constructive and positive feedback and positive suggestions so that your student teacher may improve and grow into the professional we all want him/her to be. Your active involvement is critical to a successful field experience.

Cooperating Teacher Responsibilities

- Please read this Handbook to familiarize yourself with our program.
- Become familiar with the program's scope and sequence of courses. If you need more information on this, your supervisor, and/or program coordinator will be happy to provide you with a detailed outline.
- Provide a supportive environment by preparing the class for the student teacher's arrival, and introduce the student teacher to other faculty and team members.
- Share ideas with the student teacher about goals, unit and lesson planning, sheltering instruction, class-room management, effective discipline programs.
- Share resource and reference materials that have been effective for your class.
- 6 Allow the student teacher to apply; what he/she is learning in University coursework; allow the use of different teaching strategies
- Assist the student in both long-term and short-term planning of lessons and units.
- Assist the student teacher in planning a schedule for gradual assumption of teaching responsibilities (during Phase II–III).
- Observe as many lessons as possible with written or verbal feedback. If possible, use of a video camera can allow the student teacher to self-evaluate their performances.
- © Confer regularly with the student teacher. Give the student teacher opportunities to ask questions, observe you teach, model instructions and to review the grade level curriculum continuums and state Frameworks.
- Provide opportunities for the student teacher to observe in a colleague's classroom which may broaden the student's experience.
- Allow the student teacher to complete the required amount of student teaching as outlined in this handbook.
- Maintain ongoing communication with the University Supervisor and assist in solving field-related challenges, or individual needs.
- © Complete required forms provided by the supervisor for the middle and end of the semester.

- © Communicate with the supervisor to arrange a final exit interview with the student teacher and the supervisors so that the Competency Evaluation Form can be finalized and signed off by all participants.
- If you have concerns about the progress of your student teacher, you may request an additional observation from another university supervisor. Speak as soon as possible to your assigned university supervisor about this possibility.

Cooperating Teacher Absences

In the event that a cooperating teacher is absent from school, and the student teacher can serve as a substitute, they are officially employed as a substitute by the district.

Extracurricular Responsibilities

Student teachers are encouraged to accompany teachers on extracurricular responsibilities but they cannot replace the teacher in these duties.

Effective Cooperating/Master teachers:

- Provide the student teacher with information easing adjustment to the school and classroom. (orienting)
- Help the student teacher locate resource materials, equipment, key people. (supportive)
- **1** Provide opportunities for the student teacher to study students and how they learn. (**inducting**)
- Structure responsibilities which gradually induct the student teacher into full time teaching. (inducting)
- Help the student teacher develop skills in planning and evaluating learning experiences. (guiding)
- Work with the student teacher in developing lesson delivery skills. (guiding)
- Work with the student teacher in developing classroom management skills (guiding)
- Observe the student teacher and provide specific, constructive feedback. (reflective)
- Oritique the student teacher's work in a sensitive yet straightforward way. (reflective)
- Accept the student teacher as a co-worker of equal status and ensure the student teacher is similarly treated by the students. (cooperative)
- Conference regularly and frequently with the student teacher. (cooperative)
- **©** Encourage the student teacher to explore and take risks. (**supportive**)
- Demonstrate sensitivity to the emotional needs of the student teacher during the stressful period of student teaching. (supportive)
- Familiarize student teacher to district and school programs (e.g., RSP, GATE, Special Ed., Chapter 1, Reading Recovery, etc.). (orienting)
- **©** Provide curriculum frameworks and guidelines. (**orienting**)
- Informs student teacher of district and school testing programs and their place in the curriculum. (orienting)
- **1** Build and maintain trust. (supportive)
- Help parents understand the valuable role the student teacher plays in the classroom, and the classroom plays in the development of the student teacher as a professional. (supportive)

Ineffective Cooperating/Master teachers:

- Assume too much knowledge on the part of the student teacher regarding the school and the unique classroom.
- Expect the student teacher to discover school and district support services for themselves.
- Assume student teachers have their explicit and intuitive knowledge of children and how they learn.
- Are unable to give up enough teaching time for the student teacher to have sufficient teaching experiences.
- Cannot be patient with the student teacher's occasional fumblings, experiments, and learning needs.
- Are unable to articulate their teaching clearly and concisely for the student teacher. They do not talk about their practice so that the student teacher can see the thinking and planning behind it.
- Are unable to give thoughtful, helpful, sensitive feedback to student teachers.
- On not conference frequently and regularly with student teachers.

THE EVALUATION OF STUDENT TEACHING/INTERNSHIP

The evaluation of student teaching/internship is a continuous process which facilitates the mastery of competencies in teaching and assists the student teacher/intern in developing techniques of self-evaluation.

During the semester, frequent observations by the cooperating teacher should serve constructive and informational ends. In the post-observation conference, the student teacher and cooperating teacher (intern and University supervisor) will want to explore both the successful and unsuccessful aspects of the lesson. The conference can be most valuable when suggestions for improvement are used in planning future lessons. Experience suggests that it is better to focus on two or three points per lesson.

The University supervisor will leave written observation notes and suggestions with the student teacher/intern if s/he cannot meet with the student teacher/intern immediately following the observation. Because of schedule conflicts, it is sometimes necessary for the student teacher/intern and the University supervisor to delay their conference a half-day or more after the observation.

Student teachers/interns who are having difficulty need to be informed of the areas of weakness and given specific suggestions for improvement. If it becomes apparent that the student teacher/intern is not making satisfactory progress, additional observations and conferences need to be held. Copies of all these written observations and evaluations should be provided to the student teacher/intern with a duplicate given to the program coordinator.

The cooperating teacher and University supervisor require two formal evaluations during each semester of student teaching/internship. Two formal evaluations are required by the cooperating teacher and University supervisor during each semester of student teaching/internship. Usually midterm and final conferences will be scheduled by the University supervisor to discuss these evaluations with the student teacher/intern. The midterm conference should serve as a benchmark for planning the remainder of the semester. The final evaluation will be held near the end of the semester and serve as an overall assessment of the teaching competencies of the student teacher/intern for that phase. The University supervisor, after consultation with the student teacher/intern and cooperating teacher, then assigns a grade of Credit (CR) or No Credit (NC).

WHEN THE STUDENT TEACHER OBSERVES

Consider using the following suggestions when your student teacher observes your teaching:

Observations:

- Choose situations carefully to maximize student teacher learning.
- Share your goals with the student teacher in advance (if possible).
- Encourage the student teacher to revisit your specific goals to see how they played out, or take a moment to share your goals with her as you debrief.
- Focus your student teacher's observations on specific aspects of the teaching day—e.g., the morning meeting and transition to the first curriculum activity, the reading and discussion of a story, etc.
- Focus your student teacher's observations on a few children and have him/her "track" these students' experience with the lesson.

Debriefing Together

- Invite the student teacher to tell you what he/she saw and ask you questions about why you did what you did.
- If things did not go well (it happens to the best of us), this might be an opportunity to ask the student teacher for any suggestions for the future.
- If the student teacher misses things that you did that you think are important, point these out to him/her.
- Perhaps the student teacher would have done something quite different from what you did—what might he/she have tried, and why?
- Take notes, you'll forget!
- Help your student teacher make arrangements to observe other classrooms in the school to gain exposure to a variety of teaching styles and approaches.

WHEN YOU OBSERVE THE STUDENT TEACHER

Observations

- Choose situations carefully to maximize student teacher learning.
- Focus your observations on specific aspects of the teaching day or specific aspects of her practice—e.g., how he/she gives directions, how he/she gets children to shift from one activity to the next, how he/she facilitates discussion, and so on.
- Ask the student teacher in advance about his/her broad goals or specific goals, or ask if there's anything particular he or she would like you to look for.
- Where possible, map your observations onto his/her goals for the day or activity.

Debriefing Together

- Ask the student teacher about his/her goals and how he's/she's feeling about the way things went—e.g.,
 How are you feeling about the lesson or activity? What went well? What was challenging?
- Tell the student teacher what you saw and ask questions about why he/she chose to do things one way or another.
- Ask the student teacher what he/she thinks he/she could have done or might do differently next time.
- Share you own suggestions for next time with the student teacher: Next time, you might want to try (alternative).

A FEW THOUGHTS FOR COOPERATING/MASTER TEACHERS

- If you are experiencing any sort of difficulty with your student teacher do not hesitate to share this with the university supervisor. The supervisor is there to serve as liaison between you and the University and you and the student teacher. It is critical that if any problems arise, they may be dealt with in a collaborative and timely fashion (see Section 6: Resolution of Problems).
- When assisting your student teacher in assuming classroom and teaching responsibilities it may be helpful to allow them take over one subject at a time, adding a new subject each week.
- You are working with a student teacher who is expected to take full-time responsibility for a minimum of two weeks. It is highly recommended that this experience occur prior to the final week of student teaching.
- The evaluation forms included in this handbook are most crucial to the student teachers as these forms go into their placement files. The University appreciates your timely completion of these forms.
- Please assist your student teacher in arranging to observe an SST and an IEP meeting. This is field experience requirement in Phase III student teaching.
- Please introduce your student teacher to your building bilingual and Title I support personnel as well as any related services personnel.
- If your student teacher is having difficulties and you wish additional input, discuss the possibility of an additional observation by the university supervisor and/or another university supervisor.

SECTION 5

THE UNIVERSITY SUPERVISOR: ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

General Information for University Supervisors

The three keys to being a successful university supervisor are *communication, communication, communication*. It is necessary to guide and counsel the student teacher by offering suggestion and providing encouragement to ensure that they can meet their full potential. Communication is also vital in the intermediary role with the cooperating/master teacher ensuring the establishment of the best possible classroom/university working relationship.

Progression of Work in Field Experiences

In all field experience courses, students advance from observation and participation to full time student teaching by consent of the university supervisor. If at any time, students have questions about their progress or performance, they are required to express these to their cooperating/master teacher and university supervisor. In the event the student teacher would like more input or advice, be sure to provide this assistance and document the meeting and the suggestions that you have provided. You are their guide. If there is a need, consider an interim three-way conference with the student teacher and cooperating/master teacher, document this meeting. It is best to keep a record of these conferences, and all lists of suggestions for improvement you provide to a student teacher.

Supervisor Responsibilities

- Familiarize yourself with the Sac State Specialist Credential Preparation program. Please read this Handbook to familiarize yourself with our program.
- Please read this handbook to familiarize yourself with our program.
- Check with your assigned students and be sure they are registered for student teaching.
- Become familiar with the credential we are offering; Concurrent Multiple Subject and Preliminary Level I Mild/Moderate and Moderate/Severe Education Specialist credential.
- Act as liaison between student teachers, cooperating teachers, school administrators and the university. This is very important to a successful placement.
- As soon as possible after your have received your assignments, contact the administrators, cooperating teachers and student teachers to arrange for all around introductions and a brief orientation to Sac State's specialist credential preparation program. Deliver this Handbook to all participants if the student teacher has not already done so.
- Communicate with the Field Experience Program Coordinator to assure that all placements are appropriate.

GENERAL INFORMATION FOR UNIVERSITY SUPERVISORS

- Work with the Field Experience Program Coordinator to adjust assignments, when necessary, to ensure that your students have the best possible learning situations. All changes must be done in collaboration with Field Experience Program Coordinator.
- Once the student teachers have begun the observation/participation experience, informally visit the school site to assure that everyone is satisfied with the placements.
- Formally observe the student teachers for the minimum number of required observations (usually 6–8 observations). It may be necessary and beneficial to perform more observations than the minimum required.
- Keep observation hours recorded on Visitation Form. This form and your observation/participation forms will be turned in to the Field Placement Office by end of the semester.
- Maintain ongoing communication with the principal and cooperating teacher and assist in solving field-related problems. Communication is the key.
- Facilitate student teachers assumption of classroom responsibilities. (See suggested timeline and the suggested Observation/Participation Activities under Cooperating Teacher Responsibilities).
- Encourage students to discuss successes and/or concerns in their seminars provided by their seminar instructor. If further topics need to be explored, provide small group sessions at your site.
- **6** Read, review and respond to student teacher portfolios on a regular basis.
- Review evaluation forms to the cooperating teachers several weeks before they are due (if necessary). Discuss the forms with him/her and designate a date when you will collect them. Provide copies of completed forms for both the student and cooperating teacher. Copies of the competency checklist forms are available from the special education department office at Sac State. Early in the semester the supervisor should distribute and interpret these evaluation forms to the student teacher/intern and the cooperating teacher.
- Arrange for the final exit interview at the conclusion of student teaching with student teacher and cooperating teacher. Communicate with the cooperating teacher before the meeting so that a draft of the final summary can be prepared for potentially obtaining all participants's signatures at that time.
- Be sure to turn in mileage forms to the special education department office (room Eureka 318) each month. The department office will provide you with the mileage form and due dates.

KEY POINTS

- Professionalism should always be encouraged. Students need to know that they are in a very sensitive position and that confidentiality is vital.
- Your student teacher should provide you with the bell and subject schedule for their class. This information will be useful in arranging post-conference meetings.
- Obtain a district calendar and school map.
- Arrange observations when your students are teaching a lesson, either whole or small group. Be certain to
 observe teaching of varied subjects and encourage a variety of teaching strategies.
- Be aware that your students will have emotional as well as professional needs. It will be necessary to strengthen morale as they learn to cope with the realities of teaching.
- Students who are having difficulty may need more than the minimum number of observations. It may be necessary to issue an early warning. This procedure may be found in section 5 of the handbook.
- Each of your student files should contain this information: name, phone number, cohort number, address, cooperating teacher's name, school site and room number.
- Ask your student teacher to discuss the schedule with the Cooperating Teacher to be sure that the date and time are convenient and appropriate (This schedule can be circulated during a seminar a group meeting). Follow-up observations are usually best planned during an observation post-conference.
- You may designate your portfolio, box, or basket in the teacher's room to serve as a location to exchange information.

SECTION 6

GENERAL GUIDELINES AND EVALUATION OF THE STUDENT TEACHING/INTERNSHIP EXPERIENCE

THE EVALUATION OF STUDENT TEACHING/INTERNSHIP

The evaluation of student teaching/internship is a continuous process which facilitates the mastery of competencies in teaching and assists the student teacher/intern in developing techniques of self-evaluation.

During the semester, frequent observations by the cooperating teacher should serve constructive and informational ends. In the post-observation conference, the student teacher and cooperating teacher (intern and University supervisor) will want to explore both the successful and unsuccessful aspects of the lesson. The conference can be most valuable when suggestions for improvement are used in planning future lessons. Experience suggests that it is better to focus on two or three points per lesson.

The University supervisor will leave written observation notes and suggestions with the student teacher/intern if s/he cannot meet with the student teacher/intern immediately following the observation. Because of schedule conflicts, it is sometimes necessary for the student teacher/intern and the University supervisor to delay their conference a half-day or more after the observation.

Student teachers/interns who are having difficulty need to be informed of the areas of weakness and given specific suggestions for improvement. If it becomes apparent that the student teacher/intern is not making satisfactory progress, additional observations and conferences need to be held. Copies of all these written observations and evaluations should be provided to the student teacher/intern with a duplicate given to the program coordinator.

Two formal evaluations are required by the cooperating teacher and University supervisor during each semester of student teaching/internship. Usually midterm and final conferences will be scheduled by the University supervisor to discuss these evaluations with the student teacher/intern. The midterm conference should serve as a benchmark for planning the remainder of the semester. The final evaluation will be held near the end of the semester and serve as an overall assessment of the teaching competencies of the student teacher/intern for that phase. The University supervisor, after consultation with the student teacher/intern and cooperating teacher, then assigns a grade of Credit (CR) or No Credit (NC).

STUDENT TEACHING EXPERIENCE PHASE I: EDTE 420A, EDS 471, EDS 411

Observation

As the Phase I student teacher begins the experience she/he should have one or two days to become acquainted with the school and the students within the classroom. During this initial week, interaction with students should be allowed to occur naturally during the course of the schedule day.

Week One

- Introduction of student teacher to students.
- Orientation to school and classroom: student teacher should learn schedule, class rules, and behavior management systems. It is time for the cooperating teacher, student teacher, and students to get acquainted.
- The student teacher works under the direction of the cooperating teacher in performing general duties, assisting in routine tasks (e.g., setting up classroom, lunch count). The University supervisor will observe and confer with the student and cooperating teacher regarding program guidelines and expectations. When the student is observing, she/he will be responsible for taking notes on the operation of the class.

Weeks Two and Three

- Perform general classroom duties and provide instructional assistance as requested by the cooperating teacher.
- Initial Interactions: The emphasis during this week should focus on preparing the student teacher to start functioning as an instructional team member. Steps toward this goal will made as the student teacher begins assisting the cooperating teacher in some manner during the various instructional activities and starts completing routine activities in the classroom. As opportunities arise, the student teacher may assist individuals or small groups as they are completing assignments.
- Using plans of cooperating teacher and working directly under the teacher's supervision, begin assisting with specific instruction activities (e.g., reading, language arts, math, spelling, handwriting, social studies, science, community-based instruction, self-help activities, leisure activities, domestic activities). For example, in Week Two student begins assuming responsibility for one subject area; in Week Three student adds a second subject area.
- A great deal of cooperative planning should precede this step, since the student teacher will be carrying out the plans of the cooperating teacher.

Week Four and Five

• Continue as Weeks Two and Three, assisting the cooperating teacher during instruction and throughout the school day.

STUDENT TEACHING EXPERIENCE PHASE I: EDTE 420A, EDS 471, EDS 411

• **Beginning Planning and Implementation by the Student Teacher:** Now the student teacher can repeat some of the same activities of last week, but also use some of his/her own lesson plans. The cooperating teacher must have the opportunity to review plans for each day and approve each segment of the proposed plans and activities.

Weeks Eight and Nine

- During these weeks the student teacher should continue as noted during Weeks Four–Eight, with the student teacher gradually assuming responsibility for planning and instruction until she/he is planning and implementing 50 to 70% of the morning instruction.
- Some student teachers will be ready to assume additional responsibility more rapidly than others because
 of their specific background of experience. Neither the student nor the cooperating teacher should be
 concerned about using this process, if the student teacher demonstrates the competencies.

Weeks Ten through Twelve

- These weeks represent a gradual extension and expansion of supporting the teaching and learning environment.
- By the end of this period, the student teacher should be responsible for about 70% of the morning (approximately three hours).

Weeks Thirteen and Fourteen

• These weeks represent a time for the student teacher to engage in large (whole group) instruction. This will allow the Phase I student teacher to practice both their instructional delivery and classroom management skills. The student teacher can "take over" for 50–70% of morning activities, if appropriate.

Final Week

During the final week, the student teacher should continue to support the learning environment as the
cooperating teacher transitions back to the role of the primary instructor. This is also a time for the student
teacher to observe and visit other exemplary teachers on the school campus.

STUDENT TEACHING/INTERNSHIP EXPERIENCE PHASE II AND III: EDTE 420B, EDS 472, EDS 473, EDS 412, EDS 421

Observation

As the Phase II or III student teacher begins the experience she/he should have one or two days to become acquainted with the schools within the classroom. During this initial week, interaction with students should be allowed to occur naturally during the course of the scheduled day.

Week One

- Introduction of student teacher to students.
- Orientation to school and classroom: student teacher should learn schedule, class rules, and behavior management systems. It is time for the cooperating teacher, student teacher, and students to get acquainted.
- The student teacher works under the direction of the cooperating teacher in performing general duties, assisting in routine tasks (e.g., setting up classroom, lunch count). The University supervisor will observe and confer with the student and cooperating teacher regarding program guidelines and expectations. When the student is observing, she/he will be responsible for taking notes on the operation of the class.

Weeks Two and Three

- Perform general classroom duties and provide instructional assistance as requested by the cooperating teacher.
- Initial Interactions: The emphasis during this week should focus on preparing the student teacher to start
 functioning as an instructional team member. Steps toward this goal will made as the student teacher begins assisting the cooperating teacher in some manner during the various instructional activities and starts
 completing routine activities in the classroom. As opportunities arise, the student teacher may assist individuals or small groups as they are completing assignments.
- Using plans of cooperating teacher and working directly under the teacher's supervision, begin assisting
 with specific instruction activities (e.g., reading, language arts, math, spelling, handwriting, social studies,
 science, community-based instruction, self-help activities, leisure activities, domestic activities). For example,
 in Week Two student begins assuming responsibility for one subject area; in Week Three student adds a second subject area.
- A great deal of cooperative planning should precede this step, since the student teacher will be carrying out the plans of the cooperating teacher. In addition, the student teacher will develop a general unit of motivational strategies that could be used to increase student performance levels.

Weeks Four and Five

- Continue as Weeks Two and Three, adding a third subject area, assisting the cooperating teacher during instruction and throughout the school day.
- Beginning Planning and Implementation by the Student Teacher: Now the student teacher will repeat some

STUDENT TEACHING/INTERNSHIP EXPERIENCE PHASE II AND III: EDTE 420B, EDS 472, EDS 473, EDS 412, EDS 421

of the same activities of last week, but using his/her own plans. The cooperating teacher must have the opportunity to review plans for each day and approve each segment of the plans and activities. The student teacher should begin to assume primary responsibility for both planning and instruction.

Weeks Six and Seven

Sharing instructional responsibility: The student teacher continues to assume more and more responsibility for instruction on a regular basis. Exactly how much and how quickly responsibility is assumed must be based on the readiness of the student teacher and the judgement of the cooperating teacher.

Weeks Eight and Nine

- During these weeks the student teacher should continue as noted during Weeks Five and Six, with the student teacher gradually assuming more responsibility for planning and instruction until she/he is planning and implementing 50 to 70% of the instruction by the end of the last two weeks.
- Some student teachers will ready to assume additional responsibility more rapidly than others because of their specific background of experience. Neither the student nor the cooperating teacher should be concerned about using this process, if the student teacher demonstrates the competencies.

Weeks Ten through Twelve

- These weeks represent a gradual extension and expansion of all training, but especially that of the previous four weeks. At this point the student teacher should assume responsibility for scheduling use of any other personnel in the program (under the direct guidance of the cooperating teacher) and also ensuring that students get to appointments at their assigned times, go to inclusion classes, etc.
- By the end of this period, the student teacher should be responsible for 80–90% of the instructional day.

Weeks Thirteen and Fourteen

To the degree possible, the student teacher should be the primary instructor and manager for the total time they are in class. This includes responsibility for all aspects of planning and implementation of instruction, duties, meetings, scheduling aspects, testing, etc. In the final two weeks, the student teacher should experience management of the program without the cooperating teacher's presence.

Final Week

During the final week(s) of student teaching, the student teacher should transition back into the role of the team/support teacher. He/she can support the daily activities as directed by the cooperating teacher. This is also a time for the student teacher to observe other exemplary teachers on the school campus.

INTERNSHIP EXPERIENCE

nterns, by definition, are responsible for all teaching responsibilities in their program. They will, however, be expected to demonstrate competencies in a sequential manner, over the 15 weeks of the internship semester. The intern and supervisor will jointly determine the competencies that will be evaluated during each supervisor unit.

SECTION 7

RESOLUTION OF PROBLEMS WHICH MAY OCCUR DURING STUDENT TEACHING

THE EARLY WARNING PROCESS

Determination of Candidate Competence

According to the Commission on Teacher Credentialing, candidates must attain competency in all areas of relevant content and communication outlined in the standards contained in Category III: Candidate Competence and Performance. The College of Education has thus adopted procedures to ensure such competence. Should a candidate perform unsatisfactorily in either of the field experiences by failing to achieve one or more standards, she/he will receive no credit for that assignment. The candidate may be allowed an additional field experience based on the circumstances and the assessment of the candidate's potential for success. This decision is made in consultation with the Department Chair, Special Education Field Placement Coordinator, the university supervisor, cooperating teacher, and other appropriate administrative personnel at the school site.

Procedures for Handling Problems

- ① The student teacher or the Cooperating teacher notifies the university supervisor as soon as a concern arises.
- ② The university supervisor holds a two-way or three-way conference with the student teacher and/or cooperating teacher to discuss concerns and find solutions.
- 3 The university supervisor notifies the program coordinator of the problem.
- If problems continue, the university supervisor schedules a formal three-way conference with the student teacher and cooperating teacher. This conference is to result in clear identification of the problems and development of specific, written plans for resolution.
- ⑤ The university supervisor notifies in writing the student teacher, the cooperating teacher, the site principal, and the program coordinator of the problems and the plans for resolution.
- If the plan for resolution is not followed or is unsuccessful in resolving the problems, the university supervisor consults the program coordinator to determine alternate solutions (e.g., visitation/assessment by another supervisor, change of placement, extension of placement, etc.) and next steps for this case.

It is crucial that all university supervisors follow this procedure and document so that we may assure quality and integrity in the program.

THE EARLY WARNING PROCESS

Extension of Field Placement Assignment

In circumstances where the student teacher is unable to complete the field assignment successfully as outlined in the Program Handbook, and his/her performance indicates potential for further progress, provisions may be made for an extension of the field placement assignment. The decision for extending the assignment is made collaboratively between the university supervisor, the cooperating teacher, and the program coordinator. In case where disagreement exists, the program coordinator will make the final decision.

Removal of a Student from a Field Placement

When a student teacher is removed from a field placement, a number of options are available for action subsequent to the removal.

- ① The student teacher may be placed immediately in another field placement with specified stipulations and requirements.
- ② The student teacher may be placed in another field placement in the following semester with specified stipulations and requirements.

If the first or second option is chosen, the program coordinator is responsible for working with the university supervisor and program faculty to determine the actions to be taken and conditions for the student's continuation in the program. The coordinator must notify in writing all appropriate persons and offices (see below) that the student has been removed from the field placement and specify agreements regarding re-placement and conditions/requirements for the student's continuation in the program. The coordinator maintains all records supporting the decision by the faculty to remove the student from the field placement.

- 3 The student may be denied another placement and counseled out of the program. If the third option is chosen, the program coordinator is responsible for working with the university supervisor and program faculty to determine the actions to be taken, and meeting with the student to counsel him/her out of the program. After a successful meeting with the student, the coordinator must notify in writing all appropriate persons and offices (see below) that the student has been removed from the field experience and will not be continuing in the program. The coordinator maintains all records supporting the decision by the faculty to remove the student from the field experience and encourage him/her to leave the program.
- The student may be denied another placement and terminated from the program. If the fourth option is chosen, the program coordinator is responsible for working with the university supervisor and program faculty to determine the actions to be taken, and meeting with the student to inform him/her of termination from the program. The coordinator must notify the department chair in writing the causes for stu-

THE EARLY WARNING PROCESS

dent termination from the program. The department chair must notify all appropriate persons and offices that the student has been removed from the field experience and terminated from the program. The coordinator maintains all records supporting the decision by the faculty to remove the student from the field experience.

Notification List—Required
Student Teacher
Site Personnel, e.g., cooperating teacher, principal
University Supervisor
ESSC Coordinator
Department Chair

Immediate Termination of Field Placement

When the presence of the student teacher is detrimental to the classroom or when performance does not meet minimum standards after every effort has been made to resolve identified problems, the student teacher's field placement may be terminated, effective immediately, at any point during the assignment.

SECTION 8

COMPETENCY CHECKLISTS AND OTHER FORMS

COMPETENCY CHECKLISTS AND OTHER FORMS

Phase I: EDS 411, 471 or EDTE 420A Moderate-Severe, Mild-Moderate, or Multiple Subject Student Teaching Experience
Phase II: EDTE 420B General Education Student Teaching Experience
Phase II: EDS 421C (CLAD Addendum)
Phase III: EDS 472, 473, 412 & 421 Mild-Moderate Student Teaching or Internship Experience Moderate-Severe Student Teaching or Internship Experience
University Supervisor Visitations/Observations Form
Blank Observation Record Form



Department of Special Education, Rehabilitation, School Psychology, and Deaf Studies

			EI) Evaluation: EDTE 420A			
			LDIL 420A			
☐ Midterm	Evaluation	☐ University Supervisor	□ EDS 420A			
☐ Final Eva	luation	☐ Cooperating Teacher	□ EDS 471			
☐ Student Teacher						
		Other (ie, Principal, V.P, e	tc.)			
Student Tea	cher		Date			
University			Cooperating			
Supervisor			Teacher			
School/Dist	rict		Program or Grade			
Please respo	ond to each of the portion following oom." All observ	g each section. Each rating should	formance evaluation criteria provided and completing the I apply to the student teacher's "common and typical behavior we or At Entry Level" rating in order to earn a "Credit" grade in			
Performane	ce Evaluation C	ritoria:				
3:	e Evaluation C با Outstanding					
2:						
1:	Performance i	needs improvement—skill observed	l infrequently or not demonstrated			
NA:	Setting not co	nducive to skill demonstration				
	, the University bservation I = Ir	•	n item whether rating is based on:			

Pro	fessional and	d Interper	sonal Skill	S			
1	Demonstrates p	orofessionalisr 1	m in personal a	ppearance and	d presentation. O	ı	P
2	Works effective ☐ NA	ly as a team m	nember at the s	school site.	0	1	P
3	Accepts respon	sibilities assig	ned by the cod	operating teach	ner. O	ı	P
4	Demonstrates p	oositive regard	for diversity in	n students, fam	nilies, and collea	agues. I	P
(5)	Effectively utiliz	zes the service	s of the classro	oom instruction 3	nal assistant-pro O	ofessional (if ap	pplicable). P
6	Is able to assess	s his/her own p	performance.	□ 3	0	1	P
1	Seeks, accepts, ☐ NA	and utilizes co	onstructive fee	dback for profe	essional growth O	I	P
Com	ments to Clarify o	r Supplement	Questions 1–7	:			
(8)(9)(10)Compare the comparent of the	Consistently us NA Demonstrates NA Demonstrates NA NA Ments to Clarify o	□ 1 appropriate pr □ 1 passive and a □ 1	□ 2 ofessional and □ 2 ctive listening □ 2	□ 3 interpersonal □ 3 skills. □ 3	o communication o	ns with studen	P ts, parents, and school personnel. P
Pla	nning and	d Manag	ing the	Teaching	g and Lea	rning Er	nvironment
11)	Acquires and m	naintains indiv	idual and/or sr	mall group atte	ention. O	1	P
12)	Generates resp	onses from stu	udents to chec	k for understar 3	nding of presen O	ted material. I	P
(13)	Utilizes suppor	tive correction	procedures fo	or all incorrect s	student respon: O	ses.	P
14)	Circulates arou	nd the room to	o monitor stud	ent work and b	behavior.		

	□ NA	1	2	3	0	ı	P		
Com	ments to Clarify	or Supplen	nent Questions	11–14:					
Ma	naging Stud	lent Beh	avior						
15)			port with stude		of ways.				
	□ NA	1	2	□ 3	0	I	Р		
16			attitude toward						
	□ NA	1	2	□ 3	0	I	Р		
17)			acts respectful		ents and suppo	orts dignity			
	□ NA	1	2	□ 3	0	I	Р		
18)			management ı						
	□ NA	1	2	□ 3	0	I	Р		
19			eraction among	g students.					
	□ NA	1	2	□ 3	0	I	Р		
20	Encourages st	tudents to	develop self-ma	anagement skil	lls.				
	□ NA	□ 1	2	□ 3	0	I	Р		
21)	Effectively ma	nages stuc	lent behavior ir	n the following	situations:				
	one-to-one				•				
	□ NA small group	□ 1	□ 2	□ 3	0	I	Р		
	□ NA	1	2	□ 3	0	I	P		
22	Engages in eff	ective self-a	assessment of m	nanagement str	ategies				
	□ NA	□ 1	☐ 2	□ 3	O	1	P		
Com	ments to Clarify	or Supplem	ent Ouestions 1	5–22:					
	,								
Ins	tructional Co	ontent a	nd Practice	•					
					()				()
23	Develops lesso ☐ NA	on plans wh	iich include clea	arly stated object 3	ctive(s) procedi O	ıres, materia İ	als, and assessment v P	vhich reflects the obje	ctive(s)
						-	-		
24)	Effectively assi	ists the class	sroom teacher v	with small grou	p instruction. O	1	Р		
						-			
25)	Demonstrates dents in the cl		al strategies, ac	tivities, and ma	terials that app	eal to and c	hallenge the diverse	interests and abilities	of the stu-
	□ NA	□ 1	2	□ 3	0	1	P		
26	Checks for ma	stary of pro	sented material	nrior to movin	a on to now ma	aterial			
₩		atery or pre		□ 3	O		Р		
Ca	ments to Clarify	or Cupploss	ant Augstians	12 26.					
COIN	inents to Clarily	oi anbbietti	ent Questions 2						

Stude	ent Teaching/Internship Procedural Handbook	- 7.
Ass	essment, Diagnosis, and Evaluation	
(1 7)	Applies formal and informal methods to assess students' achievements.	
	□ NA □ 1 □ 2 □ 3 O I P	
28	In collaboration with the cooperating teacher, demonstrates ongoing student assessment and, if necessary methods, materials, and/or instructional setting in order to meet stated objectives. NA 1 2 3 0 I P	ry, makes changes in teaching,
Com	ments to Clarify or Supplement Questions 27–28:	
Over	all Major Strengths:	
Sugg	estions for Improvement:	
55		
Eval	uator, please check the appropriate recommendation:	
	Recommend, based on overall outstanding performance, for advancement to next phase of studer Recommend, based on overall satisfactory performance, for advancement to next phase of studen	
	Recommend extending or repeating Phase I student teaching. Do not recommend extending or repeating Phase I student teaching.	
	nator Signature	Date
Stud	ent Teacher's Signature	Date
	Copies: White—University Supervisor, Yellow—Student, Pink—Teacher	



Department of Special Education, Rehabilitation, School Psychology, and Deaf Studies

	valuation: 420R
University Supervisor	☐ EDS 420B
Cooperating Teacher	
Student Teacher	
Other (ie, Principal, V.P, et	cc.)
	Date
	Cooperating
	Teacher
	Program or Grade
•	her: formance evaluation criteria provided and completing the
	apply to the student teacher's "common and typical behavior
d competencies require an "Abov	ve or At Entry Level" rating in order to earn a "Credit" grade in
teria:	
•	Infrequently or not demonstrated
aucive to skill demonstration	
supervisor should circle for each	item whether rating is based on:
erview P = Portfolio	
	University Supervisor Cooperating Teacher Student Teacher Other (ie, Principal, V.P, etc.) ersity Supervisor, Student Teacher competencies by using the perfeach section. Each rating should dompetencies require an "Above steria: erformance erformance erformance ducive to skill demonstration supervisor should circle for each

	CSUS 2042 Midterm and I	inal Teach	er Candidate Evaluatio	n Form (July 2005)
		l □(II) l □(III/IV)	University Evaluate Public School Eval Student Teacher/In	uator	
	Candidate's Name: Public School Evaluator: Livingstity Evaluator:		Center/Grade	:	
	University Evaluator: Multiple Subject Single Subject	M	ild/Moderate or Moderate	e/Severe	Intern
PREPA	RATION	3		ΓΡΕs 1, 4	, 5, 6, 7, 8, & 9
1	Clearly defined <u>content</u> objectives aligned w/assessment objectives (e.g., standards, Frameworks, IEP)	Conten student	2 t <u>objectives</u> for s implied		0 Not Observed learly defined <u>content</u> stives for students
2*	Clearly defined <u>language objectives</u> for Ss including language form (grammar, sentence structures), and functions (e.g., express opinion)	student	2 <u>see objectives</u> for s implied		0 N/O learly defined <u>language</u> tives for students
3	Content concepts appropriate for age and educational background level of students	approp	2 t concepts somewhat riate for Ss age onal background level	Sts a	
4*	Supplementary materials used to a high degree, making the lesson clear and meaningful (e.g., graphs). As appropriate, text is adapted to different levels of Ss proficiency		2 ise of supplementary ls and text adaptation	or <u>tex</u> exclu	0 N/O se of supplementary materials st adaptation. Conforms sively to the textbook in ng curriculum decisions.
5	4 Meaningful activities that integrate lesson concepts and integrate multicultural and social justice components	integra do not	2 <u>agful activities</u> that the lesson concepts, but include <u>multicultural</u> tial justice components	integ multi	0 N/O neaningful activities that rate lesson concepts with cultural and social justice conents
Comme	nts to clarify/supplement 1-5:				
INSTRU	UCTION: Building Background	3	TPE : 2		5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 & 11 0 Not Observed
6	Concepts explicitly linked to Ss' background experiences	Concer Ss' bac		back	epts not explicitly linked to Ss' ground experiences
7	Links explicitly made between prior knowledge and new concepts	learnin	2 nade between past g and new concepts, onsistently		0 N/O nks made between past ing and new concepts
8	4 Key vocabulary emphasized (e.g., repeated & highlighted)	but not	2 <u>cabulary</u> introduced, emphasized		0 N/O vocabulary not emphasized
9	Consistently establishes a productive learning environment with clearly stated behavioral & academic expectations	behavio	onally <u>outlines</u> oral and academic ttions for students		0 N/O not state behavioral and emic expectations
Aster	ing indicates an <u>advanced</u> level of competisks indicate competencies that are more ster of student teaching, rather than in an	consistent	with student teachers' de		

CSUS Midterm and Final Teacher Candidate Evaluation Form Page 2 of 6

Comments to clarify/supplement 6-9:

INSTRUC	ΓΙΟΝ: Comprehensible Input				
	4	3	2	1	0 Not Observed
10	Speech appropriate for students' academic and developmental proficiency level		Speech sometimes appropriate for students' academic and developmental proficiency level		Speech inappropriate for students' academic and developmental proficiency level
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
11*	Uses scaffolding techniques to		Uses some scaffolding		Uses no scaffolding techniques to
	make explanations and content		techniques to make		make explanations and content
	concepts clear ,e.g., modeling,		explanations and content		concepts clear.
	visuals, hands-on activities, TPR		concepts clear		

Comments to clarify/supplement 10-11:

11101111	UCTION: Strategies	3	2	1	0 Not Observed
12*	Provides ample opportunities for Ss to use <u>learning to learn strategies</u> (metacognitive strategies)	3	Provides students with some opportunities to use <u>learning</u> to <u>learn strategies</u>	1	Provides no opportunity for students to use <u>learning to learn</u> strategies
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
13*	Frequently utilizes instructional strategies, activities, and materials that encourage student choice, participation and effort		Utilizes instructional strategies activities & materials that encourage student choice, participation and effort		Does not utilize instructional strategies, activities, and materials that encourage student choice, participation and effort
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
14	Effectively manages Ss behavior in a variety of situations (e.g., small group, multiple small groups, whole group)		Effectively manages Ss behavior in some situations (e.g., small group, multiple small groups, whole group)		Is unable to effectively manage student behavior across situations (e.g., one-to- one, small group, multiple small groups, whole group
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
15*	Incorporates effective strategies in planning <u>differentiated</u> instruction to provide equal access to core curriculum for all Ss (i.e., EL, special education, gifted)		Incorporates some effective approaches & strategies in planning <u>differentiated</u> instruction to provide equal access to core curriculum for all students		Does not incorporate effective approaches and strategies in planning <u>differentiated instruction</u> to provide equal access to the core curriculum for all students
•	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
16	Uses a variety of <u>question types</u> , <u>including those that promote</u> higher-order thinking skills		Poses <u>questions that promote</u> <u>higher-order thinking skills</u> , but could expand		Teacher does not pose <u>questions</u> <u>that promote higher-order thinking</u> skills

- Asterisks indicate competencies that are more consistent with student teacher's developmental level in the culminating semester of student teaching rather than in an earlier semester.
- Shading indicates an advanced level of competency, <u>rarely</u> attained prior to last semester of student teaching.

CSUS Midterm and Final Teacher Candidate Evaluation Form

Page 3 of 6

Comments to clarify/supplement 12-16:

INSTRU	UCTION: Interaction 4	3	2	1	0 Not Observed
17	Provides frequent opportunities for interaction between tchr/st. & among Ss that encourage elaborated responses about lesson concepts before moving on to new content/concepts	,	Provides some opportunities for interaction between tchr/st & among students, that encourage elaborated responses	1	Provides interaction that is primarily teacher-dominated with no opportunities for students to discuss lesson concepts with teacher or among students
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
18	Often <u>circulates</u> to monitor student work and behavior		Sometimes <u>circulates</u> to moni tor student work & behavior		Does not <u>circulate</u> to monitor student work and behavior
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
19*	Grouping configurations support language and content objectives of the lesson		Grouping configurations sometimes support language and content objectives		Grouping configurations do not support language and content objectives
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
20	Consistently provides sufficient wait time for student responses		Sometimes provides sufficient wait time		Never provides sufficient wait time
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
21	Teaches & reinforces respectful interaction among Ss by providing opportunities for Ss to develop & use appropriate social & interpersonal (S&I) skills		Teaches & reinforces <u>respect-ful</u> interaction among <u>Ss</u> by providing some opportunities for Ss to develop & use appropriate S & I skills		Does not teach & reinforce respectful interaction among Ss by providing opportunities for Ss to develop and use appropriate social & interpersonal skills
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
22*	Provides ample opportunities for Ss to <u>clarify key concepts in L1</u> as needed with teacher, aide, peer, or L1 text		Provides some opportunities for students to <u>clarify key</u> concepts in L1		No opportunities for students to clarify key concepts in L1

Comments to clarify/supplement 17-22:

INSTRU	UCTION: Practice/Application				
	4	3	2	1	0 Not Observed
23	Provides ample opportunities for Ss to practice using new content knowledge with <u>hands-on</u> materials		Provides limited oppor- tunities for Ss to practice using new content knowledge with <u>hands-on</u> materials		Provides no <u>hands-on</u> materials for Ss to practice using new content knowledge
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
24*	Provides appropriate activities for students to apply content and language knowledge in the classroom		Provides activities for students to apply content or language knowledge in the classroom, but could expand		Provides no activities for students to apply content or language knowledge in the classroom

- Asterisks indicate competencies that are more consistent with student teacher's developmental level in the culminating semester of student teaching rather than in an earlier semester.
- Shading indicates an advanced level of competency, <u>rarely</u> attained prior to last semester of student teaching.

	CSUS Midterm and Final Teacher C	Candidate Evaluation Form		Page 4 of 6
25*	Uses activities that integrate all language skills (reading, writing, listening, and speaking)	Uses activities that integrate some language skills	1	0 N/O Uses activities that apply only one language skill
26	Effectively provides regular, positive feedback to Ss about behavioral expectations. Is calm, clear, consistent, & fair in establishing/following through with consequences for behavior, stressing self management	Occasionally provides effective feedback to Ss about behavioral expectations. Tends to focus feedback on mistakes instead of accomplishments.	1	0 N/O Does not provide <u>effective feedback</u> to Ss about behavioral expectations. Does not appear to be in control of emotions, relies on extrinsic motivation, and transforms issues into power struggles.

Comments to clarify/supplement 23-26:

INSTRU	JCTION: Lesson Delivery	3	2	1	0 Not Observed
27	Content objectives consistently supported by lesson delivery	3	Occasionally content objectives supported by lesson delivery	1	Content objectives not supported by lesson delivery
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
28*	<u>Language objectives</u> consistently supported by all aspects of lesson delivery		Occasionally <u>language</u> <u>objectives</u> supported by lesson delivery		<u>Language objectives</u> not supported by lesson delivery
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
29*	Consistently demonstrates efficient, smooth and effective transitions that include lesson review & lesson closure		Occasionally demonstrates efficient, smooth and effective <u>transitions</u>		Does not demonstrate efficient, smooth and effective <u>transitions</u> . Wastes instructional opportunity
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
30	Teaches in a <u>manner</u> that demonstrates energy, enthusiasm, or conviction		Occasionally teaches in a manner that demonstrates energy, enthusiasm, or conviction		Teaches in a <u>manner</u> that lacks energy, enthusiasm, or conviction
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
31	Consistently establishes a positive rapport with students in a variety of ways, and communicates and interacts respectfully with all students. Demonstrates knowledge of lives of Ss outside of classroom.		Occasionally establishes a positive rapport with Ss Communicates & interacts respectfully with all Ss in an inconsistent manner. Demonstrates little knowledge about the lives of Ss		Does not establish a <u>positive rapport</u> with students, and does not <u>communicate and interact</u> respectfully with all students. Acts with coolness& aloofness, and makes no personal contacts or exchanges with students.
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
32*	Consistently uses students' responses to make appropriate adjustments to pacing of lesson		Occasionally uses Ss' responses to make appropriate adjustments to pacing of lesson		No use of students' responses to make appropriate adjustments to pacing of the lesson

Comments to clarify/supplement 27-32:

- Asterisks indicate competencies that are more consistent with student teacher's developmental level in the culminating semester of student teaching rather than in an earlier semester.
- Shading indicates an advanced level of competency, <u>rarely</u> attained prior to last semester of student teaching.

ASSESS	CSUS Midterm and Final Teacher C SMENT	anc	lidate Evaluation Form	TP	Page 5 of 6 Es 2 & 3
33*	4 Appropriately applies a variety of formal & informal methods &	3	2 Sometimes applies <u>formal</u> and informal methods to	1	0 Not Observed No application of formal and informal methods to assess
	tools to assess Ss' achievements	3	assess Ss' achievements	1	students' achievements 0 N/O
34*	Appropriately uses <u>formative</u> student assessment data to guide future lesson design and teaching (How to help S's who did not achieve objectives) Often considers "teacher" or "the instruction" as a potential source of student difficulty.	9	Occasionally uses formative student assessment data to guide future lesson design and teaching. Sometimes considers "teacher" or "instruction" as a potential source of student difficulty.	1	No use of formative student assessment data to guide future lesson design and teaching. Sees causal factors for Ss learning difficulties as a function of past or in perceived learner traits such as laziness, low ability, or lack of parent involvement
35*	Consistently establishes appropriate achievement criteria and communicates them clearly to Ss	3	Establishes some achievement criteria and communicates them to S's	1	0 N/O Establishes no <u>achievement criteria</u>

Comments to clarify/supplement 33-35:

PROFE	SSIONALISM				TPEs 12 & 13
	4	3	2	1	0 Not Observed
36	Consistently demonstrates		Occasionally demonstrates		Does not demonstrate
	professionalism in personal		professionalism in personal		professionalism in personal
	appearance and behaviors.		appearance and behavior.		appearance and behavior.
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
37	Willingly self-assesses his/her		Sometimes self-assesses own		Does not self-assess own perform-
	own performance in terms of		strengths & weaknesses		ance in terms of strengths & weak-
	strengths & weaknesses through		through a variety of reflective		nesses. Even when prompted, is
	a variety of reflective practices		practices. May need to be		unable to self-assess or engage in
			prompted to self-assess		self reflection
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
38	Understands the need to be		Shows some understanding		Does not show understanding of the
	discreet in sharing information		of need to be discreet in shar-		need to be discreet in sharing
	with others.		ing information with others.		information with others.
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
39	Consistently accepts		Occasionally accepts		Does not accept responsibilities
	responsibilities related to		responsibilities related to		related to student teaching (e.g.,
	student teaching & follows		student teaching & follows		excellence, attendance, punctuality,
	through on commitments (e.g.,		through on commitments		initiative, etc.). Appears disorgan-
	excellence, organization,		(e.g., excellence,		ized. Accepts as "satisfactory,"
	consistent attendance,		organization, attendance,		practices that are weak
	punctuality, initiative etc.)		punctuality, initiative, etc.)		approximations of what is expected.
	4	3	2	1	0 N/O
40	Consistently seeks, accepts, and		Occasionally seeks, accepts,		Does not seek, accept, and utilize
	utilizes constructive feedback		& utilizes constructive feed-		constructive feedback for
	for professional growth		back for professional growth		professional growth. Repeats same
					major mistakes

- Asterisks indicate competencies that are more consistent with student teacher's developmental level in the culminating semester of student teaching rather than in an earlier semester.
- Shading indicates an advanced level of competency, <u>rarely</u> attained prior to last semester of student teaching.

CS	SUS Midterm and Final Teacher C	andidate	Evaluation Form		Page 6 of 6
1	Consistently participates in school-based activities (e.g., parent conferences, school/staff meetings, back-to-school night)	sch par	2 casionally <u>participates in</u> cool-based activities (e.g., ent conferences, school ff meetings)	1	0 N/O No participation in school-based activities (e.g., parent conferences, school/staff meetings, back-to-school night).
2	Consistently demonstrates ability to work collegially with faculty, CTs and other school personnel and community members (e.g., school secretary)	abil with sch sect	2 casionally demonstrates ity to work collegially h faculty, CTs and other ool personnel (e.g., school retary, instr. support, etc.)	1	0 N/O Does not demonstrate ability to work collegially with faculty, CTs and other school personnel (e.g., school secretary, instructional support, etc.)
3	Consistently exhibits respect, understanding, and sensitivity toward cultural heritage, community values, & individual aspirations of diverse students, families, and colleagues. Demonstrates strategies for overcoming possible biases.	und tow con dua fam time	casionally exhibits <u>respect</u> , <u>erstanding</u> , and <u>sensitivity</u> ard the cultural heritage, <u>inmunity values</u> , & indiv- <u>l aspirations</u> of diverse Ss, illies & colleagues. Somees demonstrates strategies overcoming possible	1	Fails to exhibit respect, understanding, & sensitivity toward the cultural heritage, community values, & individual aspirations of diverse Ss, families, & colleagues. Makes comments that convey disrespect for individuals/groups. Does not demonstrate strategies for overcoming possible biases.
mments	to clarify/supplement 36-43:				Special in the second
	Sources of Evidence (check all ite	ems that a	apply) □Portfolio		Observations
	Written reflections	Interview	v/Discussions	Othe	er (please identify)
	Evaluator: Please check the appro Recommend to subsequent sem no 0s or 1s on the final evaluation Recommend repeating current s Do not recommend repeating cu Recommend for Preliminary Cr the final evaluation Recommend repeating culmina Do not recommend repeating cu	ester of s student te urrent stu redential	tudent teaching, based on one aching experience dent teaching experience based on overall rating of 4 ent teaching experience	, ger	
Tea	acher Candidate's Signature		Date		
Pul	blic School Evaluator's Signature		University Evaluator	's Si	gnature
Dis	tribution: White (original) =Teacher I	Preparatio	n Office and Yellow = Studen	t Te	acher/Intern
culminat	s indicate competencies that are more ting semester of student teaching rati indicates an advanced level of comp	her than i	n an earlier semester.		

DESCRIPTORS OF TEACHING PERFORMANCE EXPECTATIONS

1. Subject-Specific Pedagogical Skills		
 Identifies academic content or skills standard(s) appropriate to course & grade level. 	d(s) appropriate to course & grade level.	
 Writes learning outcome(s) for students consistent with identified standards 	sistent with identified standards.	
 Presents accurate content that reflects basic principles & values of the discipline. 	principles & values of the discipline.	
• Uses instructional strategies & materials ap	• Uses instructional strategies & materials appropriate to the content & learning outcome(s).	9
2. Monitoring Student Learning	3. Interpretation & Use of Assessments 4. Making Co	em, & outcomes. 4. Making Content Accessible
 Questions to check understanding. 	 Uses a variety of assessments. 	• Uses logical, coherent sequence.
 Reviews student work in progress 	 Uses assessment results in planning. 	 Presents content in multiple ways.
 Checks for common misunderstandings. 	 Adapts assessments for student needs. 	• Provides time for practice, application.
 Pacing reflects students' needs. 	 Provides feedback to students. 	 Teaches reading strategies.
	 Maintains accurate assessment records. 	 Motivates & encourages students.
		 Adjusts lessons as needed.
5. Student Engagement	6. Developmentally Appropriate Practices	7. Teaching English Learners
 Communicates objectives clearly. 	 Promotes higher-order thinking. 	 Applies ELD principles to instruction.
 Ensures active & equitable participation. 	 Promotes goals, requirements, criteria. 	 Promotes opportunities for reading,
 Re-engages off-task students. 	 Connects curriculum to community. 	writing, listening, & speaking English.
 Encourages student dialogue. 	 Promotes student responsibility. 	 Plans differentiated instruction for ELL.
 Makes instruction relevant. 	 Supports individuality. 	 Contextualizes key concepts.
 Asks challenging questions. 		 Allows for first language support
8. Learning About Students	9. Instructional Planning	10. Instructional Time
 Assesses prior knowledge & skills. 	 Writes clear short- & long-term plans. 	 Allocates times to meet all standards.
 Knows students as individuals. 	 Makes connections across lessons. 	• Estimates times for instructional tasks.
 Interacts with parents. 	 Planes clear explanations of content. 	 Establishes procedures for routines.
 Identifies students with special needs. 	 Makes abstract concepts concrete. 	 Manages transitions efficiently.
 Understands how students' identities 	 Connects content to backgrounds. 	 Adjusts planned time if necessary.
influence schooling experiences.	 Accommodates varied student needs. 	
11. Social Environment	12. Professional, Legal, Ethical Obligations	13. Professional Growth
 Sets clear expectations for students. 	 Takes responsibility for outcomes. 	 Solicits & incorporates feedback.
 Promotes student effort & engagement. 	 Recognizes own values & biases. 	 Reflects on own teaching practices.
 Implements a discipline plan. 	 Maintains a non-hostile environment. 	 Modifies teaching based on reflection.
 Treats students fairly & with respect. 	 Follows policies for responding to 	 Prioritizes goals for professional growth.
 Promotes group & independent work. 	inappropriate behavior.	
	 Behaves legally, ethically, & professionally. 	190/90 / · · · LIDYTUOLITUUL

WIN\FORMS\descriptors (rev 05/05)



Department of Special Education, Rehabilitation, School Psychology, and Deaf Studies

Student tea	ching #:	Evaluation:	Evaluator:
☐ EDS 472		Midterm Evaluation	University Supervisor
		Final Evaluation	Cooperating Teacher
			Student Teacher
			☐ Other (i.e., Principal, V.P., etc.)
Student Tea	cher	Date	
University		Cooper	
Supervisor		Teache	.
Super visur			
School/Distr Cooperating Please respo	rict g Teacher, Univers nd to each of the co	Programity Supervisor, Student Teacher: Competencies by using the performance e	n or Grade evaluation criteria provided and completing the
School/Distr Cooperating Please respo comments p in the classro in student te	g Teacher, Univers nd to each of the co ortion following ea oom." All observed of eaching. Competencies	Program ity Supervisor, Student Teacher: competencies by using the performance enchance states and the section. Each rating should apply to the section of	
Cooperating Please respondents point the classroin student te credential. The wherever appropriate the credential of the	g Teacher, Univers and to each of the co ortion following ea oom." All observed o eaching. Competence hese competencies propriate.	Program ity Supervisor, Student Teacher: competencies by using the performance of the section. Each rating should apply to the competencies require an "Above or At Entities identified with a * must be used for standard also be used for those students earn	evaluation criteria provided and completing the he student teacher's "common and typical behavior try Level" rating in order to earn a "Credit" grade tudents earning their moderate/severe specialist
Cooperating Please respo comments p in the classro in student te credential. Th wherever ap Performanc 3:	g Teacher, Universing to each of the coortion following each om." All observed coaching. Competencies propriate. e Evaluation Crite Outstanding performances	Program ity Supervisor, Student Teacher: competencies by using the performance exch section. Each rating should apply to the competencies require an "Above or At Entities identified with a * must be used for standard and also be used for those students earn are arrows." ria: commance	evaluation criteria provided and completing the he student teacher's "common and typical behavio try Level" rating in order to earn a "Credit" grade tudents earning their moderate/severe specialist
Cooperating Please respo comments p in the classro in student te credential. Th wherever ap	g Teacher, Univers and to each of the coortion following eachorm." All observed of the coortion following eaching. Competencies propriate. e Evaluation Crite Outstanding performs	Program ity Supervisor, Student Teacher: competencies by using the performance exch section. Each rating should apply to the competencies require an "Above or At Entities identified with a * must be used for standard and also be used for those students earn are arrows." ria: commance	evaluation criteria provided and completing the the student teacher's "common and typical behavior try Level" rating in order to earn a "Credit" grade students earning their moderate/severe specialist ning their mild/moderate specialist credential,

Prof	essional a	nd Interpe	ersonal Ski	lls			
1	Demonstrate	es professionali	ism in personal	appearance a	nd presentat O	ion.	P
2	Works effecti ☐ NA	ively as a team	member at the	e school site.	0	ı	P
3	Accepts resp	onsibilities ass	igned by the co	ooperating tea	cher or onsit	e supervisor.	P
4		n school meet s of school life. 1	ings, parent co	nferences, in-so	ervice trainir	ng, and	P
(5)			urd for diversity			colleagues.	P
6					_	ivacy, respecti	ng their work, and being receptive to their ideas. P
①	Is able to asso		n performance.	. 🔲 3	0	ı	P
8	Seeks, accep	ts, and utilizes	constructive fe	edback for pro	fessional gro	owth.	P
9	Guides, supp	orts and facilit	ates the work o	of paraprofession 3	onal(s), peer	tutors, and/or	volunteers.
10	Creates and I	maintains stud	ent records wit	:h data keeping	g methods th O	nat are unobtru I	usive, expedient, organized, and current. P
11)	Participates i	n IEP meetings	s in a sensitive,	professional, a	nd legal mar O	nner. I	P
Comn	nents to Clarify	or Supplemer	nt Questions 1-	-11:			
Com	nmunicatio	on and Col	laborative	Partnersh	ips		
12)	Consistently NA	uses clear, con	cise, coherent o	oral, written an	d nonverbal O	language.	P
(13)	Demonstrate members.		-		al communic	ation with stud	dents, parents, school personnel, and other team
14)		1es passive and a1	2active listening2	skills.	0		P
15)		as a member o				•	ssessment plan, which is culturally and linguistically
	□ NA	1	2	□ 3	0	1	P
16	Plans and co	nducts collabo	rative conferen	nces with parer	nts or primar O	y caregivers. I	P

10			implements edity agency pers			vith students, fa	amilies, general educators, administrators, related
18	Cooperates a	and collaborate	s with general	education staf	f and other	team members	s, as appropriate. P
19		cial education : when requeste		consultation t	to teachers t		te he needs ofstudents with disabilities in integrated
Comn	nents to Clarify	or Supplemer	nt Questions 12	–19:			
Plan	ning and N	/lanaging t	he Teaching	g and Learr	ning Envi	ronment	
20	Establishes a NA	nd maintains a	positive, suppo	ortive, and safe	e learning ei O	nvironment. I	P
21)	Acquires and NA	maintains ind	ividual and/or s	small group att	tention. O	1	P
2	Demonstrate NA	es appropriate a	and effective in 2	structional pa	cing. O	1	P
23	Demonstrate NA	es efficient, smo	ooth, and effect	tive transitions	O	1	P
24)	Changes the NA	delivery (wher	appropriate) t	o reflect stude	ent involvem O	nent and skill re	sponse. P
25	Generates a v	variety of respo	nses from stud	lents in order t	o check for	understanding	of presented material prior to moving on to new
	□ NA	□ 1	□ 2	□ 3	0	1	P
26	Utilizes supp NA	ortive correction	on procedures f	for all incorrect	t student res O	sponses.	P
20	Circulates ard	ound the room	to monitor stu	dent work and	l behavior. O	1	P
28	Utilizes oppo	ortunities to ma	iximize support	ted inclusive e	ducational o	opportunities.	P
29	Maximizes o	oportunities fo	r students to in	teract with no	n-disabled բ O	oeers.	P
30	Provides dire	ct instructiona	I support to stu	idents in the ir	nclusive clas O	sroom, when a	ppropriate. P
31)			and facilitates the dindependenc		nt of social o	competency, lif	e skills, communication skills, self-management skills,
Comn						-	r

Mar	naging Stu	ident Beh	avior and S	ocial Inter	action S	kills	
32)					udes clearly	stated expecta	ations for student behaviors.
	□ NA	□ 1	□ 2	□ 3	0	I	P
33			rt with student		vays.		
	□ NA	□ 1	□ 2	□ 3	0	I	Р
34)			acts respectfully			ports dignity.	
	□ NA	□ 1	□ 2	□ 3	0	I	P
35)			nanagement us				
	□ NA	□ 1	□ 2	□ 3	0	I	P
36			raction among s	students.			
	□ NA	□ 1	□ 2	□ 3	0	I	P
37)			ioral managem		i.e. nonverb	al cues).	
	□ NA	1	□ 2	□ 3	0	I	Р
38)	•	•	ent behavior in t	the following s	ituations		
	▶one-to-on □ NA	e □ 1	2	□ 3	0		P
			J 2	3	O	•	•
	►small grou ■ NA	ıp □ 1	2	□ 3	0		P
				_ 3	Ü	•	•
	►multiple si	mall groups of 1	r whole class	□ 3	0	1	P
_							
39	Implements NA	a behavior ma	anagement pro 2	gram that inclu 3	udes preven O	ntative and sup I	portive interventions. P
_							
40	Demonstrate ☐ NA	es the ability t	o identify and o	defuse situation 3	ns that may O	lead to conflict	 P
						•	•
41)	Uses data to NA	develop beha	avior intervention	ons.	0	1	P
42	recording).	encourages s	elf-manageme	nt strategies to	the maxim	um extent poss	sible (e.g. self-monitoring, self-reinforcement, self-
	□ NA	1	□ 2	□ 3	0	1	P
43	Utilizes nona	aversive/least	intrusive strate	gies for behavi	or change.		
	□ NA	1	□ 2	□ 3	0	1	P
44)	Engages in e	effective self-a	ssessment of m	ianagement st	rategies.		
	□ NA	1	□ 2	□ 3	0	1	P
Comr	nents to Clarif	v or Suppleme	ent Questions 3	2-44:			
		, o. oupp.c	Questions s				
Inst	ructional (Content a	nd Practice	!			
45)			ich include clea	rly stated obje	ctive(s) prod	cedures, materi	als, and assessment which reflects the objective(s).
	□ NA	□ 1	□ 2	□ 3	0	I	P

46)	Effectively as NA	ssists the classr	oom teacher w	ith planning ar	nd delivery o O	of small group i I	instruction. P
47)	Effectively as	ssists the classr	oom teacher w	ith planning ar	nd delivery o	of whole group	instruction.
48	Effectively pl	lans and delive	rs whole group	instruction.	o	1	P
49	Demonstrate	es sound know	ledge of core co	urriculum. 3	o	I	P
50		es instructional on students' pric	strategies, acti or knowledge. 2	vities, and mat	erials that:		P
					U	'	r
	b. encourag NA	e student choic	ce and participa	ation. 3	0	I	P
	c. appeal to NA	and challenge	the diverse inte	erests and abili	ties of the st O	tudents in the o	class. P
51)	Adjusts the o	complexity of h	iis/her language	e to accommod	date for both O	n native English I	n and English language learners. P
②	Implements NA	instruction tha	t meets IEP goa	als and objectiv	/es. O	1	P
(33)	Modifies cur ☐ NA	riculum and ins	structional strat	tegies to meet	the diverse i	needs of learne	ers. P
54)	Develops an NA	d implements i	instruction whic	ch is age appro	priate and r O	eflects the stud	dent's developmental needs. P
(55)	Implements NA	and modifies g	general educatio	on core curricu	lum to meet O	t the needs of s	students with diverse learning needs. P
56	Integrates af	fective, social a	and career/voca	itional skills wi	th academic	curricula to fa	cilitate transition passages.
	□ NA	□ 1	□ 2	□ 3	0	1	P
Comm	nents to Clarify	y or Supplemer	nt Questions 45	-56:			
Asse	essment, C	Diagnosis, a	and Evalua	tion			
9	In collaborat	ion with the co	ooperating teac	her, establishe	s achieveme	ent criteria and	communicates them clearly to students.
58	Applies form	nal and informa	Il methods to as	ssess students'	achievemen O	nts.	P
59			ooperating teac instructional se				ssment and, if necessary, makes changes in teaching,
						1	
60	(when appro	priate).		-			propriate modification in learning environments
	□ NA	□ 1	□ 2	3	0	I	P

61)	Effectively in NA	nterprets and	communicates	s assessment	results to pa O	rents, stude I	ent(s) and other P	professionals.	
@	Develops IE curriculum s	-	hat are based o	on individual	strengths, ne	eeds, and p	resent levels of s	student performance and	l are aligned with
63			e IEP goals and					ding core curriculum, psy ration with cooperating to	
	□ NA	□ 1	□ 2	□ 3	0	1	P		
Comr	nents to Clarif	y or Supplem	ent Questions	57–63:					
Overa	ıll Major Stren	gths:							
Sugg	estions for Imp	provement: _							
Evalu	ator: Please o	heck approp	riate credentia	al and recom	mendation.				
	Recommen	d, based on o	verall outstan	ding perfori	mance, for Pr	eliminary I	Mild/Moderate	or Moderate/Severe Spe	cialist Credential
	Recommen	d, based on o	verall satisfac	tory perforn	nance, for Pre	eliminary N	/lild/Moderate o	or Moderate/Severe Spec	cialist Credential
	Recommen	d extending (or repeating N	1ild/Moderat	te or Modera	te/Severe s	tudent teachin	g experience.	
	Do not reco	mmend exte	nding or repe	ating special	l education s	tudent tea	ching experien	ce	
Comr	nents:								
Evalu	ator Signature	<u> </u>					Da	ite	
Stude	ent Teacher's S	ignature					Date		

 ${\it Copies: White--University Supervisor, Yellow---Student, Pink---Teacher}$

University Supervisor Visitations / Observations

Please circle:	Semester: F'	F′01	or	S′02	and	Phase: II	or	≡
			Multiple Subject:	Subject:		Grade:		
Sac State Supervisor: Student:			Single Subject:	bject:		Assignme	int:	
School: Public Sch	ublic School Evaluator(s):							

Additional Conference Time Not Connected Directly with a Formal Observation (Phone conferences included):

:				1	1	1		ı	<u> </u>		
Observation (Phone conferences included):	With whom? (Evaluator?	Student? Administrator?)									
Observation (Phone	Duration of Conference	(i.e., Reading,									
	Dates (M/D/Y)										
	Meet with Evaluator?	(Yes or No)									
	Duration of Conference	(i.e., Reading,									
	Duration of Visit	(i.e., Reading,									
	Activity/Topic of Class (i.e., Reading, etc.)	i									
	Dates (Mo/Day/Year		-	2	m	4	2	9	7	&	6

To be submitted at the end of the semester to ESSC (Eureka Hall #216). Please, attach the student teacher's evaluations (original only).

Observation Record Special Education Credential Programs										
Program:	Course No:		Date	Visitation#						
Student			School							
District			Coop. Tchr.							
Supervisor		Subject		Grade						
	estions on Planning an	d Presentation:								
Student's Signature				Date						

Student Evaluation for EDS 414 and 415: Student Teaching I and II
Moderate/Severe Disabilities Specialist Credential

Student's name:	Semester/year:
Mentor teacher:	Supervisor:
School/District/County:	

By the end of EDS 414, students should be at the level of "developing proficiency" in ALL areas. There can only be exceptions in situations where the opportunities are not available due to the types of students, ages of students, etc. If there is no opportunity to address that set of competencies because of the current placement, then a plan should be made for the final semester to get adequate opportunities. At the end of EDS 414, the supervisor and mentor teacher will determine if the student can pass on to EDS 415. Then, the student will meet with the moderate/severe credential program advisors and develop an individualized plan for EDS 415. By the end of EDS 415, all areas must be at a proficient level.

At the beginning of the semester the student will do a self-evaluation and sit with the mentor teacher and supervisor to discuss ways to meet the competencies in each area. It is the student's responsibility to make sure that the supervisor and mentor teacher have the opportunity to observe each area. During the 7th or 8th week a midterm evaluation will be done and areas of need identified. During finals week, the final evaluation will be done.

Area #1: Collaboration, communication, and development of professional commitment.

Unsatisfactory	Emerging	Developing proficiency	Proficient
Is not able to reflect on his/her communication skills and does not yet see the need for improvement in this area.	Understands the need for increasing his/her skills in this area and will make this a priority for the semester.	Is developing communication skills with staff, other faculty, and family members but needs more input and practice in this area.	Demonstrates good communication skills with other staff and professionals; easily develops rapport with family members/parents, and other faculty and staff.
Does not communicate well with students with and without disabilities.	Is beginning to increase his/her communication skills with students with and without disabilities.	Communicates fairly well with students with and without disabilities; but needs more time to be proficient.	Communicates well with students with and without disabilities; develops rapport.

Does not yet show this basic concept.	Is beginning to demonstrate enthusiasm to this concept.	Demonstrates some en- thusiasm and commitment to the goal of supported, inclusive lifestyles for all individuals but needs more time to reflect and develop this important professional value and ethic.	Demonstrates enthusiasm and commitment to the goal of supported, inclusive lifestyles for all individuals with disabilities (including work, home, and community).
Does not understand the concepts of professional ethics, and respect for the individuals he/she serves.	Understands the areas that need improvement and is working with the supervisor and mentor teacher to improve.	Needs more time and input but is developing high ethical standards.	Demonstrates high ethical standards, respect for students, respect for families, and the profession itself.
Does not critically analyze situations; and does not problem solve well.	Is beginning to demonstrate improved problem solving skills and professional decision making.	Problem solves and analyzes interactions and situations with support from mentor teacher and supervisor. Needs more work to be proficient.	Is able to problem solve and critically analyze professional decisions and interactions during and after they occur.
Does not yet self-reflect, seek input, and utilize feedback. Does not understand own strengths and weaknesses.	Is beginning to self-reflect and understand the need for ongoing professional improvement. Is begin- ning to seek feedback and understand own strengths and weaknesses.	Receives and uses feed-back from supervisor and mentor teacher; takes some initiative; and seeks feedback. Needs more time and work to develop regular self-reflection and initiative	Self-reflects regularly, receives and uses feed-back constructively. Takes initiative to find things out, ask questions, and seek feedback
Does not meet timelines and commitments; is not responsible and reliable.	Understands the need to improve his/her skills in order to be reliable, and meet commitments and timelines; and is beginning to develop these skills.	Demonstrates the effort to responsible, follow- through, and meet com- mitment and timelines.	Regularly demonstrates responsibility, follow-through, and commitment. Meets timelines.

Plans for ways to improve:

Area #2: General education curriculum and instruction of the California standards and frameworks. Teaching collaboratively and working with heterogeneous groups of students across all subject areas.

Unsatisfactory/Does not meet expectations	Emerging	Developing proficiency	Proficient
Does not demonstrate knowledge of and utilize the general education curriculum, standards and frameworks.	Is beginning to demonstrate knowledge of and to utilize the general education curriculum, standards and frameworks.	Demonstrates some knowledge of general education curriculum, standards and frameworks through participation in general education classroom instruction. Needs more practice to become proficient.	Effectively demonstrates knowledge of general education curriculum, standards and frameworks through participation in general education classroom instruction.
Does not yet show an understanding of how to design instructional units and lesson plans for heterogeneous groups of students across curricular areas.	Is beginning to develop the ability to design instructional units and lesson plans for heteroge- neous groups of students across curricular areas.	Demonstrates the ability to design some instructional units and lesson plans for heterogeneous groups of students across curricular areas. Needs more practice and input to become proficient across a variety of curricular areas.	Effectively designs a number of instructional units and lesson plans for heterogeneous groups of students across a variety of curricular areas.
Does not implement instruction in a variety of formats and groupings across curricular areas.	Is beginning to implement instruction in a variety of formats and groupings across curricular areas.	Is having some success consistently implementing instruction in a variety of formats and groupings across curricular areas.	Successfully implements instruction in a variety of formats and groupings across a range of curricular areas.

Does not yet show an understanding of how to manage instruction of heterogeneous groups of students utilizing positive and creative methods to engage and maintain learning.	Is beginning to utilize positive and creative methods to engage and maintain learning of heterogeneous groups of students. Requires more training and practice.	Demonstrates the ability to manage the instruction of heterogeneous groups of students utilizing positive and creative methods to engage and maintain learning. Needs more practice to become proficient.	Consistently and effectively utilizes positive and creative methods to engage and maintain learning of heterogeneous groups of students.
Does not yet show an understanding of how to be responsive and flexible toward a variety of learning styles and intelligences.	Is beginning to understand how to be responsive and flexible toward a variety of learning styles and intelligences. Is working hard to develop these skills.	Demonstrates responsiveness and flexibility toward a variety of learning styles and intelligences. Needs more practice to become proficient.	Successfully demonstrates responsiveness and flexibility toward a variety of learning styles and intelligences.
Does not create opportunities for learners to collaborate, cooperate and partner in the learning process.	Is beginning to develop the ability to create op- portunities for learners to collaborate, cooperate and partner in the learning process.	Demonstrate the ability to create regular opportunities for learners to collaborate, cooperate and partner in the learning process. Needs practice to become proficient.	Consistently creates effective opportunities for learners to collaborate, cooperate and partner in the learning process.
Does not understand and utilize the concepts of designing evaluation and assessment of students' learning over time.	Is beginning to understand how to design and utilize evaluation and assessment of students' learning over time and is working to develop these skills.	Demonstrates the ability to design and utilize some evaluation and assessment of student's learning over time. Needs more practice and input to become proficient.	Effectively designs and utilizes evaluation and assessment of students' learning over time for a variety of curricular areas.
Is not yet committed to developing rapport with and encouraging communication with all students, including those whose first language is not English.	Is beginning to understand how to develop rapport with and encourage communication with all students, including those whose first language is not English.	Understands how to develop rapport with and encourage communication with all students, including those whose first language is not English and is beginning to incorporate these skills into practice.	Demonstrates a strong understanding of and commitment toward developing rapport with all students, including those whose first language is not English.

Is not ready to co-teach	Is beginning to develop	Is beginning to co-teach	Successfully co-teaches
and collaborate with gen-	the skills to co-teach and	and collaborate with gen-	and collaborates with gen-
eral education teachers	collaborate with gen-	eral education teachers on	eral education teachers on
to instruct heterogeneous	eral education teachers.	a regular basis to instruct	a regular basis to instruct
groups of students and	Needs to spend more	heterogeneous groups of	heterogeneous groups of
does not demonstrate the	time and effort to develop	students. Needs more	students.
desire to develop these	these skills.	practice to be proficient.	
skills.			

Area 3: IEP development, program development, ecological assessment, self-determination, and self-advocacy.

Unsatisfactory	Emerging	Developing proficient	Proficient
Does not yet understand	Is beginning to develop	Demonstrates use of some	Successfully utilizes
and has not demonstrated	skills in the use of the	concepts of family/cen-	family/centered, collab-
how to use family/cen-	concepts of family/cen-	tered, collaborative, eco-	orative, ecological assess-
tered, collaborative, eco-	tered, collaborative, eco-	logical assessment across	ment across the general
logical assessment across	logical assessment across	the general education	education curriculum,
the general education	the general education	curriculum, functional	functional domains, and
curriculum, functional	curriculum, functional	domains, and basic skill	basic skill areas when de-
domains, and basic skill	domains, and basic skill	areas when determining	termining IEP/ITP priori-
areas when determining	areas when determining	IEP/ITP priorities for	ties for students.
IEP/ITP priorities for	IEP/ITP priorities for	students; but needs more	
students.	students.	practice to be proficient.	

Does not yet understand and/or has not yet dem- onstrated how to develop IEP/ITPs and program priorities that reflect best practices related to self- determination, meaning- ful skill development, age-appropriateness, and membership; but this	Has begun to develop skills in the development of IEP/ITPs and program priorities that reflect best practices related to self- determination, meaning- ful skill development, age-appropriateness, and membership; but this should be a high priority	This area is near proficient, but needs more work in the development of IEP/ITPs and program priorities that reflect best practices related to self-determination, meaningful skill development, age-appropriateness, and membership.	Develops IEP/ITPs and program priorities that reflect best practices related to self-determination, meaningful skill development, age-appropriateness, and membership.
should be a high priority for improvement.	for improvement.		
Does not demonstrate an understanding of, and/ or enthusiasm for developing ways to increase self-advocacy and self-determination throughout the program plan; effectively includes students in IEP development and meetings.	Is beginning to understand and implement ways to increase selfadvocacy and self-determination throughout the program plan; effectively includes students in IEP development and meetings.	Has demonstrated some skills in this area but needs more work to develop proficiency.	Determines meaningful ways to increase self-advocacy and self-determination throughout the program plan; effectively includes students in IEP development and meetings.
Does not yet demonstrate and/or is not motivated to demonstrate skills in the development of student daily and weekly schedules which reflect ageappropriate and integrated activities.	Is beginning to demonstrate some skills in the development of student daily and weekly schedules which reflect ageappropriate and integrated activities.	Develops some parts of students' schedules with these concepts in mind, but needs more work to be proficient.	Understands and utilizes the concepts of age-ap- propriateness and integra- tion when designing the action plan for a student's daily and weekly sched- ule.

Area #4: Support of students with moderate/severe disabilities in the general education classroom within the core curriculum and elective classroom activities and in other school settings.

Unsatisfactory/Does not meet expectations	Emerging	Developing proficiency	Proficient
Does not understand and utilize the principles of partial participation, modified outcomes and effective adaptations.	Is beginning to understand the principles of partial participation, modified outcomes and effective adaptations. Needs more time and effort to develop skills in this area.	Understands the need for partial participation, modified outcomes and effective adaptations and is incorporating skills in this area into practice.	Demonstrates enthusiasm and commitment to the principles of partial participation, modified outcomes and effective adaptations. Extends use of skills in this area.
Is not yet committed to the successful inclusion of all students, regardless of the severity of disability, in age-appropriate general education classrooms with opportunities for instruction of additional skills in other school and community settings.	Is beginning to understand the benefits of successful inclusion of all students regardless of the severity of disability, in age-appropriate general education classrooms with opportunities for instruction of additional skills in other school and community settings.	Understands the benefits of successful inclusion of all students regardless of the severity of disability, in age-appropriate general education classrooms with opportunities for instruction of additional skills in other school and community settings.	Demonstrates enthusiasm and commitment to the successful inclusion of all students, regardless of the severity of disability, in age-appropriate general education classrooms with opportunities for instruction of additional skills in other school and community settings.
Does not show an under- standing of how to design effective participation and support plans for students with moderate/severe dis- abilities in collaboration with general education teachers to be sustained over time within the general education core curriculum and electives.	Is beginning to develop the ability to design effective participation and support plans for students with moderate/severe disabilities in collaboration with general education teachers to be sustained over time within the general education core curriculum and electives. Requires more training and practice.	Demonstrates the ability to design effective participation and support plans for students with moderate/severe disabilities in collaboration with general education teachers to be sustained over time within the general education core curriculum and electives. Needs more practice to become proficient.	Regularly collaborates with general education teachers to design effective participation and support plans for students with moderate/severe disabilities which are sustained over time within the general education core curriculum and electives.

Does not implement participation and support plans for students with moderate/severe disabilities and modify when necessary.	Is beginning to under- stand how to implement participation and support plans for students with moderate/ severe dis- abilities and modify when necessary and is work- ing hard to develop these skills.	Is having some success with implementing support plans for students with moderate/severe disabilities and modifying when necessary. Needs more practice to be proficient.	Effectively implements participation and support plans for students with moderate/severe disabilities across a variety of core curricular and elective areas and modifies when necessary.
Is not ready to teach other staff members to implement participation and support plans, and does not demonstrate the desire to develop these skills.	Is not ready to teach other staff members to implement participation and support plans, but is interested and committed to develop these skills.	Is beginning to teach other staff members to implement participation and support plans. Needs more practice to be proficient.	Successfully teaches other staff members to implement participation and support plans.
Does not facilitate the social and academic inclusion of students with disabilities within the general education curriculum.	Is beginning to develop skills to facilitate the social and academic inclusion of students with disabilities in the general education curriculum. Requires more training and practice.	Is having some success with facilitate the social and academic inclusion of students with disabilities within the general education curriculum. Needs more practice to become proficient.	Successfully facilitates the social and academic inclusion of students with disabilities within the general education curriculum and electives.
Does not inventory the school and does not utilize other school settings (e.g. library, cafeteria, playground, student resource centers, assemblies, etc.) as instructional settings and/or as opportunities for integration with nondisabled peers.	Is beginning to inventory the school and utilize other school settings (e.g. library, cafeteria, playground, student resource centers, assemblies, etc.) as instructional settings and/or as opportunities for integration with non-disabled peers.	Is having some success with inventorying the school and utilizing other school utilize other school settings (e.g. library, cafeteria, playground, student resource centers, assemblies, etc.) as instructional settings and/or as opportunities for integration with nondisabled peers. Needs more practice to be proficient.	Routinely inventories the school and utilizes other school settings (e.g. library, cafeteria, playground, student resource centers, assemblies, etc.) as instructional settings and facilitates opportunities for integration into these settings with non-disabled peers.

Does not share informa-	Is beginning to under-	Is beginning to share in-	Consistently shares
tion with other staff and	stand the need to share	formation with other staff	information with other
administrators. Is not	information with other	and administrators and	staff and administrators
ready to collaborate in or-	staff and administrators	to collaborate in order to	and collaborates in order
der to facilitate successful	and to collaborate in order	facilitate successful inte-	to facilitate successful
integration/ inclusion.	to facilitate successful	gration/ inclusion. Needs	integration/inclusion.
	integration/inclusion. Is	more practice to become	
	interested and committed	proficient.	
	to developing skills in		
	this area.		

Area #5: Data-based, systematic assessment and instructional skills.

Unsatisfactory	Emerging	Developing proficiency	Proficient
Has not yet committed to the used of data-based assessment and systematic instruction.	Has begun to understand the need for systematic, data-based assessment and instruction.	Understands the need for systematic, data-based assessment and instruction and is beginning to incorporate these skills in practice.	Demonstrates enthusiasm and commitment toward utilizing systematic, data-based assessment and instructional strategies. Extends use of these skills.
Does not understand and utilize the concepts of designing baseline assessments to measure current performance.	Is just beginning to understand the concepts of data-based assessment design. Needs to spend more time and effort in this area in order to develop these skills.	Has demonstrated the ability to design some systematic strategies for getting a baseline of current performance. Needs more practice and input to become proficient.	Effectively designs systematic strategies for getting a baseline of current performance on a variety of skills.

Door not yet show an	Is just beginning to de-	Has demonstrated the	Utilizes collaborative
Does not yet show an understanding of how to	velop the ability to write	ability to look at data	team input (parents,
write relevant, clear, and	goals and objectives that	from a variety of sources	related services, paras), as
measurable goals based	are relevant, clear and	on the team and develop	well as data from teacher-
on systematic baseline	measurable, based on sys-	goals and objectives.	developed systematic
measures and team input.	tematic baseline measures	Needs more practice to	baselines to write rel-
	and team input.	develop goals and objec-	evant, clear, and measur-
		tives which are clear,	able goals and objectives
		relevant, and measurable.	based on the assessment.
Has not yet grasped the	Is beginning to develop	Has had some suc-	Develops and imple-
concepts of systematic	the skills to write and	cess with writing and	ments systematic instruc-
instructional instruction,	implement systematic	implementing systematic	tional programs to teach
and has not been able	instructional programs	instructional programs	measurable, short-term
to write and implement	across skill areas. Re-	across a variety of skill	or long-term objectives
systematic instructional	quires more training and	areas. Needs more prac-	related to a wide range of
programs without direct	practice.	tice to become proficient	functional, academic/cog-
support from an instructor		across a variety of skill	nitive, and basic skills.
or supervisor.		areas.	
Does not take data on in-	Is beginning to under-	Has begun taking data	Takes ongoing data on
structional programs, nor	stand how to utilize data	regularly to inform in-	instructional programs,
use data to inform instruc-	regularly to inform in-	structional practice but	and evaluates data regu-
tional practice.	structional practice and is	needs more practice and	larly to make instructional
	working hard to develop	assistance to be proficient.	changes.
	these skills.		
Is not ready to teach oth-	Is not ready to teach oth-	Has begun to teach other	Successfully teaches other
ers and does not demon-	ers to implement system-	staff members to imple-	staff members to imple-
strate the desire to devel-	atic instruction and collect	ment written instructional	ment the same instruc-
op these skills.	data but is interested and	programs and collect data	tional programs and col-
	anxious to develop these	successfully. Needs more	lect data, communicates
	skills.	practice.	with them about the data.
Is not yet able to imple-	Is still having difficulty	Implements systematic	Successfully implements
ment systematic instruc-	implementing systematic	instruction one to one, in	systematic instruction
tion one-to-one or in	instruction in varying size	small groups, and in large	one-to-one; in small
small groups or large	groups but the skill is	groups but needs more	groups, and in large
groups.	developing.	practice to be proficient.	groups.
Is not able to differenti-	Is beginning to develop	Can differentiate instruc-	Successfully differenti-
ate instruction for vary-	skills in differentiating	tion with some students	ates systematic instruc-
ing student needs within	instruction within small	in small and large groups	tion within heterogeneous
heterogeneous groups of	and large groups.	but needs more practice.	groups of students.
students.			

Area 6: Support for students in community instructional and employment settings.

Unsatisfactory	Emerging	Developing Proficiency	Proficient
Has not yet demonstrated these skills and does not understand where improvement is needed.	Is beginning to develop these skills or has not yet had the opportunity to demonstrate these skills; but understands the need.	Has done some work in this area but needs to continue to improve access and choice of goals and settings to meet current practice standards.	Inventories the community and utilizes community settings for instruction of appropriate goals and objectives in age-appropriate ways.
Has not demonstrated satisfactory progress in the development of community-based instruction.	Is beginning to understand and develop community-based instruction skills but has not had the opportunity to demonstrate.	Has developed some community-based instructional opportunities for age-appropriate students; but needs more practice to be proficient.	Develops community- based instructional programs which are meaningful to individual students; lead to skill- development and/or social relationships; and do not hinder integration.
Has not yet demonstrated these skills and does not understand where improvement is needed.	Understands the need for skill development in developing job opportunities; but has not had the opportunity to demonstrate these skills.	Has developed or assisted to develop volunteer and paid jobs in the community but needs more practice to be proficient.	Develops opportunities for volunteer and paid jobs in real employment settings in the community for students in high school and post-high school age.
Does not understand and/ or demonstrate respect- ful and age-appropriate participation and support in the community.	Is beginning to understand the need for further work on how to design respectful and age-appropriate supports in the community but has not yet had the opportunity to demonstrate these skills.	Is developing skills in respectful and age-appropriate participation and support in the community but needs more practice to be proficient.	Designs respectful and age-appropriate participation and support plans for successful community integration and social inclusion.

Is not yet ready to teach others to implement supports in the community	Is not yet ready to teach others to implement supports in the community but recognizes areas for improvement and how to improve.	Has demonstrated beginning skills in teaching others to support students effectively in the community, but needs more practice and input.	Teaches others to implement support plans in community settings.
Is not aware and thus not safe to be with students in the community.	Is not yet aware or has not had the opportunity to demonstrate skills in safety, access and mobil- ity in community settings.	Needs more practice and support to be proficient in safety, access, and mobility issues in the community.	Demonstrates awareness of safety, access, and mobility issues in community settings.
Does not yet know how to assist community members to develop respect and rapport with individuals with disabilities.	Is beginning to develop skills in assisting community members to develop respect and rapport with individuals with disabilities but has not had enough experience to demonstrate skills.	Attempts to assist community members to develop respect and rapport with individuals with disabilities, but needs more practice to be proficient.	Assists community members to develop respect and rapport with individuals with disabilities.

Area #7: Facilitation of social relationships and friendships.

Unsatisfactory/Does not	Emerging	Developing proficiency	Proficient
meet expectations			
Is not yet committed to the developing communi- ties of learners and social interactions, relationships	Is beginning to understand the need for developing communities of learners and social	Understands the need for developing communities of learners and social interactions, relationships	Demonstrates enthusiasm and commitment toward developing communi- ties of learners as well as
and friendships between students with and without disabilities.	interactions, relationships and friendships between students with and without disabilities.	and friendships between students with and without disabilities. Is beginning to incorporate these skills in practice.	social interactions, relationships and friendships between students with and without disabilities.

	1	T	Т
Does not model positive and age-appropriate interactions for peers without disabilities, school personnel, co-workers, patrons, etc.	Is just beginning to understand how to model positive and age-appropriate interactions for peers without disabilities, school personnel, coworkers, patrons, etc.	Demonstrates the ability to model positive and age-appropriate interactions for peers without disabilities, school personnel, co-workers, patrons, etc. Needs more practice and input to become proficient.	Effectively models positive and age-appropriate interactions for peers without disabilities, school personnel, coworkers, patrons, etc.
Does not understand the importance of providing relevant information and positive reinforcement to persons without disabilities in order to encourage/promote interaction with students with disabilities.	Is beginning to provide relevant information and positive reinforcement to persons without disabilities in order to encourage/promote interaction with students with disabilities. Needs to spend more time and effort to develop these skills.	Does attempt to provide relevant information and positive reinforcement to persons without disabilities in order to encourage/promote interaction with students with disabilities, but needs more practice to become proficient.	Successfully provides relevant information and positive reinforcement to persons without disabilities in order to encourage/promote interaction with students with disabilities.
Does not demonstrate sensitivity to the needs and perceptions of others in relation to the student's and the teacher's own impact on peers/others in the environment.	Is just beginning to demonstrate sensitivity to the needs and perceptions of others in relation to the student's and the teacher's own impact on peers/others in the environment.	Demonstrates sensitivity to the needs and perceptions of others in relation to the student's and the teacher's own impact on peers/others in the environment. Needs practice and input to become proficient.	Consistently demonstrates sensitivity to the needs and perceptions of others in relation to the student's and the teacher's own impact on peers/others in the environment.
Does not provide support to facilitate and encourage social interactions and relationships.	Is beginning to provide support to facilitate and encourage social interactions and relationships and to fade this support in and out as necessary. Requires more training and practice.	Is having some success with providing support to facilitate and encourage social interactions and relationships and fading this support in and out as necessary. Needs more practice to become proficient.	Effectively provides support to facilitate and encourage social interactions and relationships and fades this support in and out as necessary.

Does not understand and utilize the various levels of support to enhance friendships and other meaningful social relationships.	Is just beginning to understand and utilize appropriate level of support to enhance friendships and other meaningful social relationships.	Is having some success providing appropriate level and variety of support to enhance friendships and other meaningful social relationships. Needs more practice to become proficient across a variety of settings.	Provides appropriate level and variety of support to enhance friendships and other meaningful social relationships across stu- dents and settings.
Does not ensure that the students with disabilities are the primary receivers of interactions and are provided with a means of communicating to peers without disabilities.	Is beginning to understand the need and how to ensure that the students with disabilities are the primary receivers of interactions and are provided with a means of communicating to peers without disabilities.	Understands the need and how to ensure that the students with disabilities are the primary receivers of interactions and are provided with a means of communicating to peers without disabilities. Is beginning to incorporate this in his/her regular practice.	Consistently ensures that the students with disabilities are the primary receivers of interactions and are provided with a means of communicating to peers without disabilities.
Does not assist in the shared utilization of communication systems for the purpose of interactions and conversations with peers.	Is just beginning to assist in the shared utilization of communication systems for the purpose of interactions and conversations with peers.	Demonstrates the ability to assist in the shared uti- lization of communication systems for the purpose of interactions and conversa- tions with peers. Needs more practice.	Successfully assists in the shared utilization of communication systems for the purpose of interac- tions and conversations with peers.
Does not yet facilitate students being perceived as competent and may even make negative and/ or stigmatizing statements when speaking of students with disabilities.	Is beginning to understand how to facilitate students being perceived as competent and to make statements that are positive when speaking of students with disabilities. Is working hard to develop these skills.	Does attempt to facilitate students being perceived as competent and to make statements that are positive and empowering when speaking of students with disabilities. Needs more practice.	Facilitates students being perceived as competent and makes statements that are positive and empowering when speaking of students with disabilities.

Does not utilize his/her	Is beginning to utilize his/	Demonstrates the abil-	Utilizes his/her own inter-
own interpersonal skills to	her own interpersonal	ity to utilize his/her own	personal skills to interact
interact well with students	skills to interact well with	interpersonal skills to	well with students without
without disabilities. May	students without disabili-	interact well with stu-	disabilities and actively
appear uncomfortable	ties and to understand the	dents without disabilities.	creates opportunities to
when interacting with	importance of this for	Needs more practice in	do so.
these students.	supporting interactions	creating opportunities to	
	between students with and	do so.	
	without disabilities.		

Area 8: Evaluation, design, and implementation of augmentative and alternative communication systems.

Unsatisfactory/Does not meet expectionas	Emerging	Developing proficiency	Proficient
Has not developed satisfactorily in this area and/or is not motivated to develop these skills.	Is beginning to develop skills in this area but needs more practice, and more training.	Recognizes the need for enhancing, creating, or improving communication skills in all students. Needs more work to be proficient in understanding and valuing all communication, and/or in providing rich communication opportunities for all students.	Recognizes the need for enhancing, creating, or improving communication skills in all students. Understands that everyone communicates and provides rich communication opportunities for all students.
Does not yet understand collaborative assessment strategies for receptive and expressive communication.	Is beginning to understand receptive and expressive communication and collaborative means of assessment but needs to make this a priority for more input, study, and practice.	Shows beginning skills in collaborative assessment of receptive and expressive communication. Needs more practice to be proficient.	Systematically develops ways to collaboratively get a good assessment of receptive and expressive communication.

Has not yet demonstrated understanding or skills in this area.	Is enthusiastic about skill development in this area, and is just beginning to understand these concepts.	Has demonstrated beginning skills in how to structure observations, direct and indirect assessments, and interviews to get a clear picture of the child's communicative abilities and needs.	Structures observations, direct and indirect assessments, and interviews to get a clear picture of the child's communicative abilities and needs.
Has not yet demonstrated skills in this area.	Skills in this area are just beginning to emerge and the student recognizes the importance of improvement in this area.	Demonstrates beginning ability to analyze data and develop strategies, modifications, and adaptations.	Analyzes the data and develops strategies, takes data, revises, and makes modifications and adaptations.
Has not satisfactorily developed an understanding of these concepts.	An understanding of meaningful vocabulary development across systems has begun to emerge but the student has not yet demonsrated these skills.	Has developed an understanding of meaningful vocabulary development across systems but has not yet demonstrated proficient skills in this area.	Demonstrates the ability to develop vocabulary which is meaningful and useful to the learner, whether symbolic or nonsymbolic.
Has not satisfactorily developed an understanding of the cognitive skills connected to communication.	The student has just begun to understand concepts related to cognitive skills connected to communication.	The student is beginning to understand and demonstrate the ability to teach cognitive skills related to communication.	Understands and teaches cognitive skills connected to communication.
Does not yet understand symbol use and how to assess it.	The student has begun to understand how to assess symbol use and determine symbol systems.	The student needs more practice to be efficient in assessing symbol use and determining systems.	Assesses symbol use and determines appropriate symbolic systems.
Does not yet understand how or why to develop low-tech temporary sys- tems.	The student is beginning to understand low and high-tech systems and the need for their development.	The student has had some experience in developing low-tech systems but needs more practice to be efficient.	Understands and develops temporary low-tech systems for use until high-tech systems can be put into place, if they are needed/desired.
Does not understand or is not motivated to develop instructional programs/ protocols for increasing communication skills.	Is beginning to understand how to develop instructional programs/ protocols for increasing communication skills.	Has developed some instructional programs/ protocols for increasing communication skills but needs more practice to become proficient.	Develops instructional programs/protocols for increasing communication skills both nonsymbolic and symbolic.

Has not yet shown mo-	Is beginning to under-	Demonstrates beginning	Is an advocate for all
tivation and advocacy to	stand how to be an advo-	skills in advocacy for all	students to be effective
support all students to be	cate for all students to be	students to be effective	communicators.
effective communicators.	effective communicators.	communicators.	

Area #9: Functional analysis of challenging behavior and the development of positive behavioral support plans.

Unsatisfactory/Does not meet expectations	Emerging	Developing proficiency	Proficient
Does not yet demonstrate an understanding of be- havior as communication and of ways to use posi- tive support strategies to encourage positive behav- ior in all students.	Is beginning to be aware of behavior as communication and the need for positive support strategies to encourage positive behavior in all students.	Understands behavior as communication and the need for positive support strategies to encourage positive behavior in all students. Is beginning to incorporate these skills into practice.	Demonstrates an awareness of behavior as communication and of ways to use positive support strategies to encourage positive behavior in all students.
Does not adopt the principles of positive behavioral support generally. Does not show a disposition of understanding the nature of challenging behavior as connected to quality of life and self-determination.	Is beginning to adopt the principles of positive behavior support generally and to show a disposition of understanding the nature of challenging behavior as connected to quality of life and self-determination.	Does adopt the principles of positive behavioral support generally and the disposition of understanding the nature of challenging behavior as connected to quality of life and self-determination. Is beginning to incorporate into practice.	Successfully adopts the principles of positive behavioral support generally and the disposition of understanding the nature of challenging behavior as connected to quality of life and self-determination. Incorporates into practice regularly.
Does not yet demonstrate the ability to recognize when a challenging behavior requires closer analysis.	Is just beginning to demonstrate the ability to recognize when a chal- lenging behavior requires closer analysis.	Demonstrates the ability to recognize when a challenging behavior requires closer analysis. Needs more practice to become proficient.	Consistently recognizes when a challenging behavior requires closer analysis.

Does not analyze challenging behavior through functional assessment of the environment, curriculum, instructional support and other antecedents to the behavior.	Is beginning to develop skills to analyze challenging behavior through functional assessment of the environment, curriculum, instructional support and other antecedents to the behavior. Requires more training and practice.	Is having some success with analyzing challenging behavior through functional assessment of the curriculum, instructional support and other antecedents to the behavior. Needs more practice to become proficient.	Demonstrates the ability to analyze challenging behavior through functional assessment of the environment, curriculum, instructional support and other antecedents to the behavior.
Does not analyze challenging behavior through functional assessment of the consequences of the behavior, what is maintaining the behavior and the interactions around the behavior in the students' various environments.	Is beginning to develop skills to analyze challenging behavior through functional assessment of the consequences of the behavior, what is maintaining the behavior and the interactions around the behavior in the students' various environments. Requires more training and practice.	Is having some success with analyzing challenging behavior through functional assessment of the consequences of the behavior, what is maintaining the behavior and the interactions around the behavior in the students' various environments. Requires more training and practice.	Demonstrates the ability to analyze challenging behavior through functional assessment of the consequences of the behavior, what is maintaining the behavior and the interactions around the behavior in the students' various environments.
Does not show an understanding of how to use interviews, observations and ongoing data collection to develop a hypothesis regarding the challenging behavior and to test the hypothesis.	Is beginning to develop the skills to use interviews, observations and ongoing data collection to develop a hypothesis regarding the challenging behavior and to test the hypothesis.	Demonstrates the ability to use interviews, observations and ongoing data collection to develop a hypothesis regarding the challenging behavior and to test the hypothesis. Need more practice across students to become proficient.	Utilizes interviews, observations and ongoing data collection to develop a hypothesis regarding the challenging behavior and to test the hypothesis.

Is not able to write a multi-component intervention plan to support a student's behavior without direct guidance from an instructor, mentor teacher and/or university supervisor.	Is beginning to understand and utilize the skills to develop a multicomponent intervention plan to support a student's behavior. Needs to spend more time and effort in this area.	Demonstrates the ability to develop a multi-component intervention plan which includes changes to the antecedents and consequences in the various settings in which the student participates, teaching replacement, communication and social	Develops a multi-component intervention plan which includes changes to the antecedents and consequences in the various settings in which the student participates, teaching replacement, communication and social skills, providing supports
		skills, providing supports and adaptations, a crisis plan, etc. Needs more practice across students to become proficient.	and adaptations, a crisis plan, etc. Extends use of skills to multiple students.
Does not implement behavioral support plans, keep ongoing data, analyze data regularly nor make the necessary changes.	Is beginning to develop the skills to implement behavioral support plans, keep ongoing data, analyze data regularly and make the necessary changes. Requires more training and practice.	Demonstrates the ability to implement behavioral support plans, keeps ongoing data, analyzes data regularly and makes the necessary changes. Needs more practice across students to become proficient.	Implements behavioral support plans, keeps ongoing data, analyzes data regularly and makes the necessary changes. Extends use of skills to multiple students.
Is not yet committed to analyzing the class-wide and school-wide behavioral support systems at the school.	Is beginning to develop the ability to analyze the class-wide and school- wide behavioral support systems at the school and make recommendations for change.	Is having some success with analyzing the class-wide and school-wide behavioral support systems at the school and making recommendations for change. Needs more practice.	Analyzes the class-wide and school-wide behav- ioral support systems at the school and makes recommendations for change.
Does not recognize her/ his own ability to affect changes in behavior and does not self-reflect and analyze the process.	Is beginning to recognize her/his own ability to affect changes in behavior and to self-reflect and analyze the process.	Recognizes her/his own ability to affect change in behavior and demonstrates the ability to self-reflect and analyze the process. Needs more practice.	Is confident in her/his own ability to affect changes in behavior and regularly self-reflects and analyzes the process.

Area 10: Accommodating students with physical disabilities and/or sensory disabilities; and, students with specialized health care needs.

Unsatisfactory/Has not met expectations	Emerging	Developing Proficiency	Proficient
Does not understand and has not satisfactorily demonstrated awareness of the implications of physical and sensory disabilities on learning and participating in school and/or community activities.	Demonstrates an emerging understanding of these skills but has not had the opportunity to demonstrate them.	Demonstrates beginning awareness of the implications of physical and sensory disabilities on learning and participating in school and/or community activities; but needs more practice to be proficient.	Demonstrates awareness of the implications of physical and sensory dis- abilities on learning and participating in school and/or community activi- ties.
Does not understand and has not demonstrated skills in developing and carrying out procedures for lifting, carrying, transferring, and positioning students with motor disabilities in conjunction with related service personnel.	Demonstrates an understanding of the need for demonstrating skills in carrying out procedures for lifting, carrying, transferring, and positioning students with motor disabilities in conjunction with related service personnel but has not yet had the opportunity to demonstrate.	Demonstrates beginning skills in the ability to develop and carry out procedures for lifting, carrying, transferring, and positioning students with motor disabilities in conjunction with related service personnel.	Develops and carries out procedures for lifting, carrying, transferring, and positioning students with motor disabilities in conjunction with related service personnel.
Does not demonstrate problem solving related to adaptations and supports for students with physical, and sensory disabilities.	Has not yet had the opportunity to demonstrate these skills.	Is beginning to demonstrate skills in problem solving related to adaptations and supports for students with physical, and sensory disabilities.	Demonstrates problem solving related to adaptations and supports for students with physical, and sensory disabilities.

Does not demonstrate sat-	Has not had the oppor-	Has begun to demonstrate	Assists in the develop-
isfactory development in	tunity to assist in the	the ability to assist in the	ment and follows special-
the ability to assist in the	development and follow	development and follow	ized health care plans,
development and follow	specialized health care	specialized health care	manages plans, and prob-
specialized health care	plans, manages plans, and	plans, manages plans, and	lem solves changes.
plans, manages plans, and	problem solves changes.	problem solves changes.	
problem solves changes.			

Plans for improvement:

Area #11: Program Management, evaluation, and systems change. Note: In EDS 414, this section is only required for intern teachers.

Unsatisfactory/Does not meet expectations	Emerging	Developing proficiency	Proficient
Does not understand the concepts of planning and implementing a daily schedule in which all students are engaged in meaningful activities/ classes/experiences.	Is beginning to understand the concepts of planning and implementing a daily schedule in which all students are engaged in meaningful activities/classes/ experiences. Needs to spend more time and effort to develop these skills.	Demonstrates the ability to plan and implement some daily schedules in which all students are engaged in meaningful activities/classes/ experiences. Needs more practice to be proficient.	Plans and implements a daily schedule in which all students are engaged in meaningful activities/ classes/experiences.

If the home-base is a self-contained classroom, is not committed to creating a schedule which is instructionally rich, age-appropriate, activity-based and similar to the schedule of the same-age nondisabled peers.	If the home-base is a self-contained classroom, is beginning to understand how to create a schedule which is instructionally rich, age-appropriate, activity-based and similar to the schedule of the same age nondisabled peers. Requires more training and practice.	If the home-base is a self-contained classroom, does attempt to create a schedule which is instructionally rich, age-appropriate, activity-based and similar to the schedule of the same-age nondisabled peers. Needs more practice and input to be proficient.	If the home-base is a self-contained classroom, creates a schedule which is instructionally rich, age-appropriate, activity-based and similar to the schedule of the same-age nondisabled peers.
If the home-base is a self-contained classroom or if "pull-out" sessions are utilized, does not yet show an understanding of how to individualize instruction in small and large group situations as well as 1:1 instruction.	If the home-base is a self-contained classroom or if "pull-out" sessions are utilized, is beginning to develop the ability to individualize instruction in small and large group situations as well as 1:1 instruction. Requires more training and practice.	If the home-base is a self-contained classroom or if "pull-out" sessions are utilized, is having some success with individualizing instruction in small and large group situations as well as 1:1 instruction. Needs more practice to be proficient.	If the home-base is a self-contained classroom or if "pull-out" sessions are utilized, demonstrates the ability to individualize instruction in small and large group situations as well as 1:1 instruction.
Does not understand the concepts of planning and implementing a daily schedule in which all staff (including her/himself) are clearly aware of their roles and responsibilities across the day, which students they are supporting, and where they need to be.	Is beginning to understand the concepts of planning and implementing a daily schedule in which all staff (including her/himself) are clearly aware of their roles and responsibilities across the day, which students they are supporting, and where they need to be. Needs to spend more time and effort in this area.	Demonstrates the ability to plan and implement some daily schedules in which all staff (including her/himself) are clearly aware of their roles and responsibilities across the day, which students they are supporting, and where they need to be. Needs more practice to be proficient.	Plans and implements a daily schedule in which all staff (including her/himself) are clearly aware of their roles and responsibilities across the day, which students they are supporting, and where they need to be.
Is not ready to provide direction or guidance to paraprofessional staff, peer coaches and other related staff, and does not demonstrate the desire to develop these skills.	Is not ready to provide direction or guidance to paraprofessional staff, peer coaches and other related staff, but is interested and eager to develop these skills.	Is beginning to provide direction and guidance to paraprofessional staff, peer coaches and other related staff. Needs more practice to be proficient.	Provides direction and guidance to paraprofessional staff, peer coaches and other related staff.

Does not respond to un- expected events or issues with flexibility, calm and creative problem solving.	Is beginning to understand the need to respond to unexpected events or issues with flexibility, calm and creative problem solving. Needs to spend more time and effort in this area to develop skills.	Understands the need to respond to unexpected events or issues with flexibility, calm and creative problem solving. Incorporates these skills into practice, but needs more practice to become proficient across a variety of situations.	Effectively responds to unexpected events or issues with flexibility, calm and creative problem solving.
Is not able to balance the needs of the whole class or program while at the same time meeting the individual needs of students.	Is beginning to develop the ability to balance the needs of the whole class or program while at the same time meeting the individual needs of students. Requires more training and practice.	Demonstrates the ability to balance the needs of the whole class or program while at the same time meeting the individual needs of students. Needs more practice across situations to become proficient.	Is able to balance the needs of the whole class or program while at the same time meeting the individual needs of students.
Does not yet support and facilitate a positive learning and working environment for all students and staff.	Is beginning to under- stand how to support and facilitate a positive learn- ing and working environ- ment for all students and staff and is working to develop these skills.	Does attempt to support and facilitate a positive learning and working en- vironment for all students and staff. Needs more practice and assistance to become proficient.	Successfully supports and facilitates a positive learning and working environment for all students and staff.
Does not yet understand how to evaluate individu- al student programs/IEPS to check for progress and quality.	Is beginning to understand how to evaluate individual student programs/IEPS to check for progress and quality.	Demonstrates beginning ability in the evaluation of individual student programs/IEPs but needs more practice to be proficient.	Evaluates individual student programs/IEPs on a regular basis, checking for progress but also program quality.
Does not understand how to develop efficient data management systems and student files.	Has begun to understand how to develop efficient data management systems and student files.	Is beginning to demonstrate the ability to establish efficient data management systems and student files.	Establishes efficient data management systems and student files.
Does not yet understand how to develop data sys- tems and student files.	Has not yet begun to develop data systems and student files.	Has begun to develop efficient data systems and student files but needs more work to be profi- cient.	Establishes efficient data management systems and student files.

The student creates bar-	These skills are still just	Is developing the abil-	Creates solutions vs. bar-
riers vs. solutions; has	emerging.	ity to create solutions vs.	riers; identifies ways to
trouble identifying ways		barriers; identifies some	solve problems; is proac-
to solve problems; and		ways to solve problems;	tive and self-reflective
has not demonstrated pro-		and has begun to be pro-	in understanding her/his
active and self-reflective		active and self-reflective	own influence in situa-
skills in her/his role as a		in understanding her/his	tions which need to move
change agent.		own influence in situa-	forward.
		tions which need to move	
		forward.	

Midterm	Recommend	lations

Final Recommendations

gnature of Student	Date	resence at the meeting		
gnature of Mentor Teacher	Date	Signature of Univ	versity Supervisor	Date
omments and recommendations:				
no, comments and recommendate	ions for ways to	meet competencies:		
no, is it recommended that the str		on to EDS 415?		
Yes (Student at			No	
ere all areas at a "developing pro	ficient" or higher	?		

Recommendations

rerage score overall:		_	
ere all areas at a "developing pro Yes: No:		r?	
it recommended that the student		ase of student teaching?	
Yes: No:			
omments and recommendations:			
gnature of Mentor Teacher	Date	Signature of University Supervisor	Date
gnature of Student	Date ndicating your p		